Public Document Pack
Email: committeeservices@horsham.gov.uk
Direct line: 01403 215465

Audit Committee
Wednesday, 7th July, 2021 at 5.30 pm
Park Suite, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham

Councillors:

Stuart Ritchie (Chairman)
John Blackall (Vice-Chairman)
Martin Boffey
Ruth Fletcher
Gordon Lindsay

Jack Saheid
James Wright

You are summoned to the meeting to transact the following business
Glen Chipp
Chief Executive

Agenda

Page No.
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Minutes

3-8

To approve as correct the minutes of the meetings held on 14 April and 26 May
(Note: If any Member wishes to propose an amendment to the minutes they
should submit this in writing to committeeservices@horsham.gov.uk at least 24
hours before the meeting. Where applicable, the audio recording of the
meeting will be checked to ensure the accuracy of the proposed amendment.)
3.

Declarations of Members' Interests
To receive any declarations of interest from Members of the Committee

4.

Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Committee or the
Chief Executive

5.

Risk Management - Quarterly Update

9 - 22

To receive the report of the Director of Corporate Resources
6.

Internal Audit reviews of Revenues and Benefits 2020/21
To receive the report of the Director of Corporate Resources

Horsham District Council, Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex RH12 1RL
Telephone: 01403 215100 (calls may be recorded) Horsham.gov.uk Chief Executive – Glen Chipp

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

23 - 26

7.

Internal Audit - Annual Report and Opinion 2020/21

27 - 46

To receive a report from the Chief Internal Auditor
8.

Annual Governance Statement

47 - 68

To receive the Annual Governance Statement for 2020/2021
9.

Treasury Management Activity and Prudential Indicators 2020/21

69 - 82

To receive a report from the Director of Corporate Resources
10.

Subsidiary Housing Company Accounts

83 - 116

To receive a report from the Director of Community Services
11.

Risk Based Verification Policy
To receive a report from the LGSS Revenues & Benefits Operations Manager

12.

Urgent Business
Items not on the agenda which the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion
should be considered as urgent because of the special circumstances

117 - 120

Agenda Item 2
Audit Committee
14 APRIL 2021

Present:

Councillors: Stuart Ritchie (Chairman), John Blackall (Vice-Chairman),
Tony Bevis, Ruth Fletcher, Richard Landeryou, Jack Saheid and
James Wright

AAG/35 MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2020 were approved as an
accurate record and would be signed by the Chairman at a later date.
AAG/36 DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.
AAG/37 ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chairman announced that Councillor James Wright had been appointed as
a Member of the Audit Committee at the last meeting of Full Council and
welcomed him to the Committee.
The Chairman announced that the External Audit Partner, Andrew Brittain,
would be replaced by Elizabeth Jackson before the next Audit Committee
Meeting. The Chairman thanked Andrew for his work.

AAG/38 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND AUDIT PLAN
The External Auditors presented the Audit Progress Report and Audit Plan to
the Committee.
Members noted the contents of the report.
AAG/39 RISK MANAGEMENT - QUARTERLY UPDATE
The Director of Corporate Resources presented the Risk Management
Quarterly Update to the Committee. The report included an update on the
Corporate Risk Register for consideration and provided an update on progress
with the quarterly departmental risk register reviews.
It was reported that there were six risked considered to be high:
CRR35 - COVID-19 (i) The Council is unable to deliver statutory front line
services to the community due to, for example, staff shortages or unavailability
of key officers. (ii) Substantial financial loss to the Council.
1

Page 3

Audit Committee
14 April 2021

CRR19 - Ongoing reduction in planning fees; reduced car parking income;
increased homelessness; and increased housing benefit claims; leisure centres;
property income; investment income.
CRR01c - Decrease in Rateable Value due to appeals and businesses going
under. This may cause the Council to fall below the business rates baseline,
resulting in loss of funding.
CRR18 - (i) A malicious attacker exploits a known or unknown security
weakness to penetrate the Council’s ICT systems. The level of threat has been
raised by the Cabinet Office to amber. (ii) IT not working due to environmental
problems: fire, flood, power cut.
CRR01b - Funding from Government is less generous than assumed in the
Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) from 2021.
CRR05 - Officers are either unaware of expected controls or do not comply with
control procedures.
It was reported that Risk CRR32, considered medium, would be removed from
the next corporate risk register following the withdrawal of the NHS appeal in
March 2021, ending the prospect of any further High Court process.
Departmental risk registers had been reviewed and updated.
The Committee noted the contents of the report and relevant appendices.

AAG/40 DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/2021
The Director of Corporate Resources presented the Draft Annual Governance
Statement 2020/21.
The annual review of the Council's governance, risk management and internal
control arrangements had been completed in the spring leading to the
production of the Annual Governance Statement for 2020/21. This review
included information and assurance gathering processes to ensure that the
published Annual Governance Statement was correct as well as a review of the
Council's Governance Framework against the best practice framework devised
by CIPFA/SOLACE.
RESOLVED
That the Draft Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 be approved.
AAG/41 INTERNAL AUDIT - QUARTERLY UPDATE REPORT

Page
2 4

Audit Committee
14 April 2021

3

The Chief Internal Auditor provided Members with an update on all internal
audit and counter-fraud activity completed during the quarter, with a summary
of all key findings.
Overall, of the eight formal audits finalised during the quarter, one received an
opinion of ‘substantial assurance’; five received an opinion of ‘reasonable
assurance’; and two received an opinion of ‘partial assurance’.
Formal follow-up reviews would continue to be carried out for all audits where
‘partial assurance’ had been received.
The Committee noted the contents of the report.

AAG/42 INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY 2021/22 AND ANNUAL PLAN
The Chief Internal Auditor presented the Internal Audit Strategy and Annual
Plan for 2021/22.
The Strategy would The Strategy proposed an approach based on focusing
audit resources in areas with the highest risk to the achievement of the
Council’s objectives. These areas had been identified and prioritised based on
the Council’s own risk assessment processes and following consultation with
senior
officers and Members.
RESOLVED
That the Council’s Internal Audit Strategy 2021/22 and Annual Plan be
approved.
AAG/43 URGENT BUSINESS
There was no urgent business.
AAG/44 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
That under section 100A(2) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and
public be excluded from the meeting for the remainder of this item of business
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information, as
detailed in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, by virtue of paragraph 5 and in all
the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.
AAG/45 APPENDIX 2 OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT QUARTERLY UPDATE
Members noted the content of the appendix.

Page3 5

Audit Committee
14 April 2021

The meeting closed at 6.48 pm having commenced at 5.30 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page
4 6

Public Document Pack
Audit Committee
26 MAY 2021

Present:

Councillors: Tony Bevis, John Blackall, Martin Boffey, Ruth Fletcher,
Richard Landeryou, Stuart Ritchie and Jack Saheid

Apologies:

Councillors: James Wright

AAG/1

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN
RESOLVED
That Councillor Stuart Ritchie be elected Chairman of the Committee for
the ensuing Municipal Year.

AAG/2

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN
RESOLVED
That Councillor John Blackall be appointed Vice-Chairman of the
Committee for the ensuing Municipal Year.

AAG/3

TIME OF MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR
RESOLVED
That meetings of the Committee be held at 5.30pm for the ensuing
Municipal Year.

The meeting closed at 6.52 pm having commenced at 6.46 pm

CHAIRMAN

1

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Agenda Item 5
Report to Audit Committee
7th July 2021
By the Director of Corporate Resources
INFORMATION REPORT
Partially Exempt under Paragraph 5 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972

Risk Management ~ Quarterly Report
Executive Summary
This report includes an update on the Corporate Risk Register for consideration and
provides an update on progress with the quarterly departmental risk register reviews.

Recommendations
That the Committee is recommended to:
i)

Note the contents of this report.

Reasons for Recommendations
As part of good governance, it is important that Members understand the key risks facing
the Council.

Background Papers
Corporate Risk Register

Wards affected: All.
Contact: Jane Eaton, Director of Corporate Resources, 01403 215300.

Page 9

Background Information
1

Introduction and Background

1.1

The Audit Committee is charged with responsibility for monitoring the effectiveness
of the Council’s risk management arrangements.

1.2

The report provides details of key changes to the Council’s Corporate Risk
Register, and an update on progress regarding the departmental risk registers (see
3.1 and 3.2 below).

2

Relevant Council Policy

2.1

The Council’s Risk Management Policy is detailed in the Council’s Risk
Management Toolkit. The Council’s Risk Management Strategy is a component part
of the Policy, and this document sets out to achieve the following objectives:


Fully integrate risk management into the culture of the Council and its strategic
and service planning processes.



Ensure that the risk management framework is understood and that ownership
and accountability for managing risks is clearly assigned.



Ensure the benefits of risk management are realised through maximising
opportunities and minimising threats.



Ensure consistency throughout the Council in the management of risk.

3

Details

3.1

Corporate Risk Register
The Senior Leadership Team has reviewed the Corporate Risk Register and
comments have been updated to reflect the current position for each risk (see
Appendix 1 and exempt appendix 2).
The Corporate risk profile is shown in the following heat map which shows the total
number of risks in each segment. The red / amber / green zones are in accordance
with the Council’s risk appetite.
CRR33

CRR02
CRR03
CRR06
CRR34
CRR35
CRR35a

CRR18

CRR01c

CRR17
CRR36

CRR01b
CRR05

Page 10

CRR19

There are five risks which are currently considered to be high and nine medium.
The high-risk area relates to the following:
CRR19

Ongoing reduction in planning fees; reduced car parking income;
increased homelessness; and increased housing benefit claims;
leisure centres; property income; investment income.

CRR01c

Decrease in Rateable Value due to appeals and businesses going
under. This may cause the Council to fall below the business rates
baseline, resulting in loss of funding.

CRR01b

Funding from Government is less generous than assumed in the
Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) from 2021

CRR05

Officers are either unaware of expected controls or do not comply
with control procedures.

CRR18

(i) A malicious attacker exploits a known or unknown security
weakness to penetrate the Council’s ICT systems. The level of
threat has been raised by the Cabinet Office to amber.
(ii) IT not working due to environmental problems: fire, flood, power
cut.

Please see the risk register in Appendix 1 which provides full details of all risks on the
“live” register together with details of the control actions and responsible officers.
Two Risks, CRR33 and CRR36 are shown in the exempt appendix 2. Risk CRR36 will be
removed from the next corporate risk register following a settlement being agreed and paid
out to Aviva.
3.2

Departmental Risk Registers
Departmental risk registers have been reviewed and updated.

4

Outcome of Consultations

4.1

Officers who are responsible for control actions and the Senior Leadership Team
have been consulted in updating the Corporate Risk Register.

5

Other Courses of Action Considered but Rejected

5.1

Not applicable.

6

Financial Consequences

6.1

There are no financial consequences as this report is for noting.

7

Legal Consequences

7.1

There are no legal consequences as this report is for noting.

8

Staffing Consequences

8.1

There are no staffing consequences as this report is for noting.

Page 11

9

Risk Assessment

9.1

The report provides an update on the Council’s corporate risks and how these are
being managed by the Senior Leadership Team. See Appendix 1 for the latest
version of the Council’s Corporate Risk Register.

10

Other Considerations

10.1

Risk management encompasses all risks within the organisation, including
strategic, operational, and project/change risks. This includes consideration of
Crime & Disorder; Human Rights; Equality & Diversity; and Green issues.

Page 12

Appendix 1 Corporate Risk Report June 2021
Risks ordered by RAG not numerically.
Generated on 08 June 2021

Risk Code & Description

Effect

Risk
Owner

Current Risk
Matrix

Control Action

Control
Action
Owner

CRR.19.2 Monitor the external Dominic
environment
Bradley

Page 13

CRR19
Cause: Uncertainty in the UK and
World economy. The Government has
spoken about an additional 5%
reduction in local government
funding, and further cuts in years to
come. The impact on the financial
markets and the pound following
Covid-19 has brought forward a
deeper depression and caused a
slowdown in the property and
financial markets.
Risk: Ongoing reduction in planning
fees; reduced car parking income;
increased homelessness; and
increased housing benefit claims,
leisure centres, property income;
investment income.

CRR.19.3 Monitor internal
indicators, particularly income
Dominic
generation and respond
Bradley
appropriately to adverse
trends

Financial
Service
Delivery
Compliance
with
Regulations

Target Risk Matrix

Quarterly Update
June 2021 update:
Covid-19 triggered a sudden and deep
recession. The impact on the economy
and the Council’s income in particular
was severe in 2020/21, causing a
£4.5m deficit outturn compared to
budget.
Swift action was undertaken to review
income and expenditure, including a
staff restructure and a reduction in
capital programme. This, together
with one-off Government funding for
expenditure and income for the impact
of COVID-19 covered the Council’s
2020/21 losses.

Jane
Eaton
CRR19.4 Evaluate and discuss
with Members possible actions
to mitigate loss of income.
Jane
e.g., Corporate Restructure,
Eaton
investment and infrastructure
projects that generate income

A balanced budget was set for
2021/22 as a result of the November
2020 restructure and a better than
expected one-year settlement which
included further one-off Covid-19
related support. However, budget
shortfalls approaching £3m a year are
currently forecast by the end of the
medium-term financial period and the
future is very uncertain.
The restart of housing evictions in
June 2021 is likely to create more
homeless people and benefits cases.

CRR01c
Financial
Cause: The Council is reliant on
Reductions in
Central Controlled Government
funding
funding (e.g., Business Rates).
Financial
Risk: Decrease in Rateable Value due
to appeals and businesses going
under. This may cause the Council to

CRR.01c.1 Continue to keep a Dominic
watching brief
Bradley
Jane
Eaton

CRR.01c.2 Evaluate and
discuss with Members possible
Dominic
actions to mitigate loss of
Bradley
income. e.g., Corporate
Restructure, investment and

1

June 2021 update:
With business rates reform postponed
and the COVID-19 recession, further
reductions in business rates seem
inevitable. The impact in 2021/22 is
lessened by Government giving 100%
business rate relief to retail and

Risk Code & Description

Effect

Risk
Owner

fall below the business rates baseline,
resulting in loss of funding.

Current Risk
Matrix

Control Action

Control
Action
Owner

infrastructure projects that
generate income

Target Risk Matrix

Quarterly Update
leisure businesses in the first three
months of 2021/22 and 67% relief for
the remainder of the financial year.
However, the uncertainty is now
deferred to what happens in 2022/23.
Appeals to the Valuation Office are
increasing, which could trigger
backdated refunds. The appeals
provision remains high at £5m, albeit
the Council’s share is only 40% of
this.
Due to Covid-19, Business Rate
payments were below normal at the
end of 2020/21. Courts are resuming
in June 2021 so a new recovery
pattern will be established.

Page 14

CRR01b
Financial
Cause: The Council is reliant on
Central Controlled Government
funding (e.g., Business Rates).

CRR.01b.1 Continue to keep a Dominic
watching brief
Bradley
CRR.01b.2 Revisit the MTFS
and if necessary 2020/21
Dominic
budget in year, with Cabinet in Bradley
September.

Reductions in
funding
Adverse effect
on morale

Jane
Eaton

Risk: (ii) Funding from Government is Financial
less generous than assumed in the
MTFS from 2021
Failure to
achieve agreed
objectives

CRR05
Governance
Cause: Managers are responsible for
ensuring that controls to mitigate
risks are consistently applied.
Risk: Officers are either unaware of
expected controls or do not comply
with control procedures.

Failure of
business
objectives
Health & Safety
Financial

CRR.01b.3 Evaluate and
discuss with Members possible
actions to mitigate loss of
income. e.g., Corporate
Restructure, investment and
infrastructure projects that
generate income.

CRR.05.1 Officer training
Jane
Eaton

2

Government has withdrawn the
changes to business rates and
revenue funding through the Fair
Funding Review for the time being.
This has removed this part of the risk
temporarily, although Government has
only given a one-year settlement in
2021/22, giving little insight into the
medium term. . It is uncertain
whether any future implementation of
business rates reform will commence
from 1 April 2022 or delayed to April
2023.
With income much reduced, £3m
budget deficits are currently forecast
across later years of the MTFS unless
significant action is taken. Further
‘additional’ Government funding is not
expected into 2022/23.

Jane
Eaton

CRR.05.3 All Service Managers
required to sign an Assurance Jane
Statement. (By 30th June
Eaton
Annually) (Cyclical)
CRR.05.4 “Cultural

June 2021 update:

Jane

June 2021 update:
The Annual Governance Statement
action plan included an increased
focus on training for management and
staff in this area. Head of Service and
all manager training has taken place.
A roll out into services is planned for

Risk Code & Description

Effect

Risk
Owner

Service
Delivery
Compliance
with
Regulations
Personal
Privacy
Infringement
Reputation
damage

Page 15

Loss of key
CRR18
systemsTechnological
disruption to
Cause: Council services are
Council
increasingly reliant on IT systems at a
services.
time when there are greater
Cost of
opportunities for malicious attackers
investigation
to exploit security weaknesses.
and recovery of
Jane
systems.
Risk 1: A malicious attacker exploits a
Eaton
Fraud/theft.
known or unknown security weakness
Loss of the
to penetrate the Council’s ICT
integrity of
systems.
Council
Records.
Risk 2: IT not working due to
Penalties from
environmental problems: fire, flood,
the ICO.
power cut.
Adverse media
coverage.

Current Risk
Matrix

Control Action
compliance” Internal Audits
identify service-based issues
and help managers to resolve
these.

Control
Action
Owner
Eaton

CRR.05.5 Programme of
training and information to
ensure all managers
understand their roles.

Jane
Eaton

CRR.05.6 Governance review
of the Horsham Museum

Jane
Eaton

CRR.18.1 Staff and Member
Training

Claire
Ward /
Robert
Laban

CRR.18.2 Awareness of
current threats

Andrea
Curson

CRR.18.3 An effective ICT
Service delivery team

Andrea
Curson

CRR.18.4 Effective patching
and updates to mitigate
known vulnerabilities

Andrea
Curson

CRR.18.5 Compliance with
expected security standards.
(PSN, PCI-DSS)

Andrea
Curson

CRR.18.6 Effective policies in
place which outline security
requirements for users of ICT

Andrea
Curson

CRR.18.7 Effective back-up
Andrea
and recovery processes in
Curson
place for Council ICT systems.
CRR.18.8 Transferring the
risks to the cloud provider
CRR.18.9 LGA Cyber Security
review plan developed,
approved internally and being
carried out.

Andrea
Curson

Target Risk Matrix

Quarterly Update
this summer and quick bite financial
training for the autumn/winter.

June 2021 update:
Level of attack, particularly
Ransomware attacks has been raised
by the Cabinet Office. Remediation
ongoing.
CRR.18.1 IT Security Training has
been rolled out to all staff and the IT
Security Officer has reviewed the
training and some items have been
sent out to staff. More staff training
to follow.
CRR.18.2 This work is ongoing.
CRR.18.3 All work is ongoing.
CRR.18.4 Patching of devices ongoing.
CRR.18.5 PSN Accreditation
CRR.18.6 This work is ongoing. New
policies have been updated and are
reviewed regularly.
CRR.18.7 This work is ongoing.

Andrea
Curson

CRR 18.8 This work is ongoing.
CRR 18.9. Work is progressing.

3

Risk Code & Description

CRR17
Cause:
The External Auditors audit the HDC
Benefits Grant Subsidy return to the
Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP) on an annual basis to identify
errors.
Risk:
The Benefit Subsidy claim may be
qualified and/or financial losses. HDC
has a case load with a particularly
high number of working people with
many changes of circumstances.

Effect

Risk
Owner

Financial
Service
Delivery
Jane
Compliance
Eaton
with regulations
Reputation

Page 16

People and
businesses
come to harm
and suffer loss
that might not
CRR02
otherwise have
Managerial / Professional
occurred.
Cause: The Council has a legal
Complaints /
obligation to protect personal data.
claims /
The Information Commissioners
litigation
powers are much more far reaching
Resources
Jane
when they change in May 2018.
consumed in
Eaton
defending
Risk 1: Major data breach or leak of
claims.
sensitive information to a third party.
Financial losses
Risk 2: Risk of significant ICO fine for
Fines from
non-compliance with new General
regulators
Data Protection Regulations (GDPR).
Adverse
publicity
Reputation
damage

Current Risk
Matrix

Control Action

Control
Action
Owner

CRR.17.1 Continuously
monitor the level of quality
control checking.

Beccy
Salmon

CRR.17.2 An earmarked
reserve for subsidy provision
is now in place that would
cover the loss of subsidy in
the event that the upper
threshold in the subsidy claim
is breached.

Beccy
Salmon

Target Risk Matrix

Quarterly Update
June 2021 update
The service continues to maintain a
robust QC process to mitigate financial
loss via a qualified subsidy loss.
However, in February 2021 colleagues
found a long-standing error relating to
a claim assessed under the CenSus
regime leading to an overpayment of
£35,000. This, combined with a small
decline in 2020/21 quality due to
workload pressure puts the Council
closer than it has ever been to the
lower threshold for 2020/21 since
leaving the CenSus partnership. In
the event of the audit putting the
claim above threshold then we will
complete a full test of the cell.
A further £8,000 historic error was
found in April 2021. This will affect
the 2021/22 claim but being a lower
amount is less likely to lead to a
subsidy loss.

Andrea
CRR.02.1 Develop appropriate
Curson /
processes & procedures which
Sharon
underpin the IT Security Policy
Evans

CRR.02.1 This work is ongoing.

CRR.02.3 Provide a
programme of Induction and
at least annual training on
Information Security to all
staff.

Robert
Laban

CRR.02.4 Annual PSN
Accreditation

Andrea
Curson

CRR.02.5 Representatives
from each department meet
Sharon
every other month to maintain
Evans
compliance, updates and
training

4

June 2021 update:

CRR.02.3 HR has rebuilt the council’s
e-learning function and the L&D
consultant will work with the
Information Security Officer to support
any rollout of required training,
induction training and refreshers as
needed.
CRR02.4 PSN Accreditation work 2020
Accreditation obtained. Health Checks
booked in for June 2021 to allow us to
work towards 2021 Accreditation.
CRR02.5 This is continuing and is
ongoing.

Risk Code & Description

CRR03
Legal
Cause: The Civil Contingencies Act
places a legal obligation upon the
Council, with partners, to assess the
risk of, plan, and exercise for
emergencies, as well as undertaking
emergency and business continuity
management. The Council is also
responsible for warning and informing
the public in relation to emergencies,
and for advising local businesses.

Effect

Risk
Owner

People and
businesses
come to harm
and suffer loss
that might not
otherwise have
occurred.
Complaints /
claims /
litigation
Resources
consumed in
defending
claims.

Current Risk
Matrix

Control Action

Control
Action
Owner

CRR.03.1 Update corporate
business continuity plan and
regular review.

Rob
Jarvis

CRR.03.2 Update
departmental business
continuity plans and regular
review.

Rob
Jarvis

CRR.03.5 Bitesize workshops
to address new procedures
and processes.

Rob
Jarvis

Page 17

CRR.03.6 Fortnightly BC
meetings during Covid-19

Rob
Jarvis

June 2021 update:
CRR.03.1 BC plan updated in May and
includes ongoing lessons from the
ongoing covid 19 incidents. *Expect
some additional changes to the
document as and when current UK
guidance develops.
2nd wave plan was implemented by
the BC working group.

CRR.03.5 All bite size sessions
postponed. Debrief and review
sessions will be introduced and run
once COVID-19 guidelines allow.
(Estimated July/Aug 2021 as roadmap
restrictions will be underway by then
assuming no extensions take pace).
CRR.03.6 BC working group still
meeting every two weeks and now the
recovery roadmap has been outlined a
return to business as usual can be
progressed.

Reputation
damaged

People come to
harm.
Complaints/clai
CRR06
ms/ litigation
Physical
Financial losses
Cause: The Council is responsible for
Censure by
the health & safety of its clients, staff
audit /
and other stakeholders, owns and
inspection
Glen
maintains significant assets, and also
Reputation
Chipp
has responsibility for H&S in some
damage
partner organisations where it does
Adverse effect
not have operational control.
on morale
Stress and
Risk: A health & safety failure occurs.
absenteeism

Quarterly Update

CRR.03.2 From July to October all HoS
bc plans will be reviewed in line with
recent events and updated
accordingly.

Adam
Chalmers

Risk: The Council is found to have
Financial losses
failed to fulfil its obligations under the
Act in the event of a civil emergency.
Censure by
regulators

Target Risk Matrix

CRR.06.2 H&S Management
Forum reviews corporate
inspection strategy quarterly.

Robert
Laban /
Health &
Safety
Officer
June 2021 update:

CRR.06.3 Training programme
includes annual refreshers on
Robert
a rolling programme. All
Laban
mandatory training must be
completed as part of probation

5

A corporate inspection strategy and
training programme have been
implemented. Now an ongoing/
quarterly review by the H&S
Management Forum.

Risk Code & Description

CRR34
Cause:
Uncertainty in the UK and World
economy. Instability and high-profile
failures.
Risk:
Key contractor failure

Page 18

CRR35
Cause:
COVID-19 is an illness that can affect
your lungs and airways and is caused
by a virus called coronavirus.
The illness is highly contagious, and
people with underlying health
conditions are at a higher risk of
becoming very ill. This includes older
adults, and/or people with chronic
medical conditions such as heart
disease; diabetes; and lung disease.
Risk:
(i) The Council is unable to deliver
statutory front-line services to the
community due to, for example, staff
shortages or unavailability of key
officers.

CRR35a
Cause: Covid-19 infection
Risk: Serious risk to the health and
safety of workers

Effect

Risk
Owner

Current Risk
Matrix

Control Action

Control
Action
Owner

CRR.34.1 Regularly check
accounts of key suppliers

Heads of
Service

CRR.34.2 Check public liability Heads of
insurance of key suppliers
Service
Financial

Jane
Eaton

Failure of
business
objectives
Health and
safety
Financial
Service
Glen
Delivery
Chipp
Compliance
with regulations
Reputation
Staffing and
culture

Failure of
Health and
safety, Service
Delivery,
Compliance
with
regulations,
Reputational
loss.

CRR.34.3 Ask for key
suppliers’ business continuity
plans

Heads of
Service

CRR.34.4 Consider whether
the failure of a key supplier
needs to go in service
business continuity plan

Heads of
Service

Quarterly Update
June 2021 Update:
The COVID-19 recession continues to
make losses of contractors more
likely. The business continuity group
continues to monitor the position and
we have not yet experienced failures
among our suppliers.
A world shortage of building supplies
may cause delays to building projects
e.g., St Peter’s Hall – which may affect
external funding.

June 2021 Update:
CRR.35.1 Essential services
have been highlighted with the
intention of redeployment of
staff from other service areas. Jane
Staffing shortages on refuse
Eaton
collection may benefit from
availability in the labour
market.

CRR.35a.1 The director led
Business Continuity Group to
oversee H&S measures (staff
H&S representative observes)

Jane
Eaton

Target Risk Matrix

Jane
Eaton

CRR.35a.3 Regular updates on
Robert
government advice on keeping
Laban
safe
CRR.35a.4 A balanced
approach to home/office
working in line with
government advice

Andrea
Curson/R
obert
Laban

CRR.35a.5 Re-modelling of
workspaces to ensure social
distancing

Brian
Elliott

6

All Council services continue to run
well (except Economic Development).
Statutory public meetings have
restarted.
Staff are being vaccinated through the
national vaccination programme,
reducing the risk of serious illness
amongst staff.

June 2021 update:
Item CRR.35a.3 Regular updates on
government advice on keeping safe.
The work is ongoing and monitored
fortnightly by the Business Continuity
Group. The H&S adviser routinely
reviews all new HSE, NHS guidance
and updates corporate processes/
accordingly. The Head of HR&OD
communicates any changes as
appropriate.
CRR.35a.4 A balanced approach to

Risk Code & Description

Effect

Risk
Owner

Current Risk
Matrix

Control Action

Control
Action
Owner

CRR.35a.6 Provision of
sanitary products and PPE

Brian
Elliott

CRR.35a.7 Risk assessments
for offices and specific staff

Robert
Laban

CRR.35a.8 Managed opening
/closure of the Capitol,
Museum, Leisure, Sports
services and Reception in line
with safety concerns

Vicky
Wise

Page 19
7

Target Risk Matrix

Quarterly Update
home/office working in line with
government advice.
The work is ongoing and monitored
fortnightly by the Business Continuity
Group. SLT are reviewing strategic
options for hybrid working post Covid;
HR are developing new ways of
working policies in consultation with
staff.
CRR.35a.7 Risk assessments for
offices and specific staff.
The work is ongoing and monitored
fortnightly by the Business Continuity
Group. The H&S Adviser has updated
the corporate template for managers
to make such assessment.

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Report to Audit Committee
7 July 2021
By the Director of Corporate Resources
INFORMATION REPORT
Not Exempt

Internal Audit reviews of Revenues and Benefits 2020/21
Executive Summary
This report tells Councillors the outcome of the internal audit reports of Revenues and
Benefits completed by Milton Keynes’ internal audit as part of the agreement in which some
Northamptonshire-based Council’s provide Horsham District Council’s Revenues and
Benefits service. All three audits, completed in the fourth quarter of 2020/21, achieved good
assurance for the control environment. The Benefits audit showed substantial assurance
for compliance and the two Revenues audits good assurance for compliance.

Recommendations
The Committee is recommended to:


Note the report and consider any further action required in response to the issues raised.

Reasons for Recommendations
i)

To comply with the requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
2013 (amended April 2017).

ii)

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Council’s
systems of internal control.

Background Papers
None

Wards affected: all
Contact: Jane Eaton, Director of Corporate Resources, 01403 213500

Page 23

Background Information
1

Introduction and Background

1.1

The Northamptonshire based local authority partnership, originally called LGSS,
started providing Horsham District Council’s Revenues and Benefits service in April
2018. This service includes the internal audit of these services.

1.2

Milton Keynes internal audit completed the audits of Council Tax, Housing Benefits
and Business Rates during the fourth quarter of 2020/21.

1.3

Milton Keynes internal audit gave their opinion of the adequacy of the system and the
compliance of the service with the system.

2

Relevant Council policy

2.1

Strong internal control supports Corporate Plan key success criteria 5.3 “The
Council continues to provide the quality, value for money services that people need
throughout the 2020s.”

3

Details

3.1

Milton Keynes internal audit finalised all three of the Revenues and Benefit audits
during quarter one of 2020/21. The Business Rates Audit received satisfactory
assurance for the control environment and good assurance for compliance. The
Council Tax audit received good assurance for the control environment and
satisfactory assurance for compliance. The Benefits audit received good assurance
for the control environment and substantial for compliance. Key audit findings from
final reports are summarised in Appendix A.

4

Next Steps

4.1

The Council’s operational manager for Revenues and Benefits will implement the
agreed actions arising from the audits within the timescale set.

5

Views of the Policy Development Advisory Group and Outcome of
Consultations

5.1

Milton Keynes’ Internal Audit consulted Horsham District’s Head of Revenues and
Benefits, the Operations Manager for and LGSS’s specialist officers at the start and
throughout the review, including discussion and agreement of recommendations.
The Director of Corporate Resources agreed the outline, draft and final reports..

6

Other Courses of Action Considered but Rejected

6.1

Not applicable

Page 24

7

Resource Consequences

7.1

Horsham District Council pays for these audits as part of its fee to Milton Keynes for
the Revenues and Benefits service. There are no resource consequences arising
from this report.

8

Legal Considerations and Implications

8.1

There are no legal consequences arising from this report because it is for
information.

9

Risk Assessment

9.1

Milton Keynes’ internal audit use a risk based approach when carrying out their
audit and in evaluating the importance of their finding and recommendations.

10

Procurement implications

10.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report because it is for
information.

11.

Equalities and Human Rights implications / Public Sector Equality
Duty

11.1

There are no human rights or equality implications arising from this report because
it is for information.

12

Environmental Implications

12.1

There are no environmental implications arising from this audit because it is for
information.

13

Other Considerations

13.1

There are no other implications arising from this audit because it is for information.

Page 25

Appendix A
Summary of the main findings from the audits completed by LGSS internal audit in
quarter four
Council Tax Audit
Based on the completion of their fieldwork Milton Keynes’ internal audit gave good
assurance for the control environment covering Council Tax and good assurance for
compliance.
The auditor concluded the team bill residents accurately and on time. However there was
a concern that staff who did not need to change Council Tax bandings could do so. There
was no evidence this weakness had been exploited. There was also concern the quality
assurance work had been patchy during lockdown.
Benefits Audit
Based on the completion of our fieldwork Milton Keynes’ internal audit gave a good
assurance opinion for the control environment covering the management of Benefits and
substantial assurance for compliance.
The main recommendation arising from the audit concerns a reconciliation between the
Benefits system and the Housing system since the introduction of Housing’s new system
in March 2020.
Business Rates audit
Based on the completion of their fieldwork Milton Keynes’ internal audit gave good
assurance for the control environment covering business rates and good assurance for
compliance.
In general the service was working well but the auditors recommended some more work on
quality assurance in a similar way to that undertaken in Council Tax and Benefits.

Page 26

Agenda Item 7
Report to Audit Committee
7th July 2021
By the Chief Internal Auditor
INFORMATION REPORT
Not Exempt

Internal Audit – Annual Report and Opinion 2020/21
Executive Summary
This report has been compiled to:


Provide an overall annual opinion on the adequacy of the Council’s governance
arrangements, risk management systems and control environment.



Summarise performance against key indicators.



Provide an update on internal audit and counter fraud activity undertaken during Quarter 4.

No assurance can ever be absolute; however, based on the internal audit work completed, the
Chief Internal Auditor is able to provide ‘reasonable’ assurance that Horsham District Council
has in place an adequate and effective framework of governance, risk management and
internal control for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.

Recommendations
i)

To note the annual opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment, governance and risk
management systems.

ii)

To note the performance of Orbis Internal Audit against performance targets.

iii)

To note the summary of audit and project work undertaken during Quarter 4.

Reasons for Recommendations
i)

To comply with the requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Auditing
Standards.

ii)

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Council’s
system of internal control.

Background Papers:
Consultation:
Wards affected:
Contact:

Internal Audit Reports and Quality Assurance Self-Assessment.
N/A
All
Paul Miller, Chief Internal Auditor, 07885-381446

Page 27

Background Information
1.

1.1

Introduction and Background
Annual Report and Opinion
The 2020/21 internal audit plan was approved by this committee in April 2020. All
reviews have been completed, with the exception of one, and our Annual Report
and Opinion for the year is attached as Annexe A.

1.2

Quarter 4 Update
The Audit Committee receives periodic reports on the work carried out by the
Internal Audit service as part of the Council’s governance arrangements. Please
see Annexe B for the summary of work undertaken by Internal Audit during
Quarter 4 (1st January to 31st March 2021).

1.3

Staffing
The Horsham internal audit plan has been delivered by the Orbis Internal Audit
Partnership in accordance with professional standards (see below). All auditors
have the requisite experience to effectively fulfil their responsibilities, and auditors
who have undertaken work for Horsham D.C during 2020/21 are either
professionally qualified, or are working towards a professional qualification. All
work is overseen by the Chief Internal Auditor who is CMIIA qualified.

2 Relevant Policy / Professional Standards
2.1

Statutory Background
The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 state that: “A relevant
authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness
of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account
public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.” This responsibility is
discharged through the Orbis Internal Audit team.

2.2

Relevant Professional Standards
Internal Audit follows the standards set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (last revised in 2017).
The Chief Internal Auditor is required to report on an annual basis to provide an
opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance
arrangements, risk management systems and internal control environment.

Page 28

2.3

Relevant Council Policy
The Council’s Constitution supports the statutory requirements outlined above.
Financial Procedure Rule 4e 27 states that: “The Chief Finance Officer ensures
the Council has appropriate arrangements in place to maintain an adequate and
effective internal audit. The terms of reference for Internal Audit are detailed in
the Council’s Internal Audit Charter which is approved and reviewed annually by
the Audit Committee”.

3.

Service Quality and Performance

3.1

As explained above, the Council’s Internal Audit service is operated in
accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which came
into effect on 1st April 2013 (amended in 2017). The standards require that an
external quality assessment is undertaken every five years by a qualified,
independent assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. The
Internal Audit service at Horsham, which is provided by the Orbis Internal Audit
Partnership, was externally reviewed by the South West Audit Partnership in
2018. The overall conclusion was that the service had achieved the highest level
of conformance. As well as self-assessing against the standards every year,
performance of the service is also monitored through a range of performance
indicators, the results of which are contained within Appendix A of the annual
report.

3.2

The Internal Audit service has maintained its independence throughout 2020/21
in accordance with the Audit Charter.

4.

Next Steps
Not applicable.

5.

Outcome of Consultations
Heads of Service / Service managers are consulted during each audit. At the end
of each review, audit findings and draft reports are discussed with the Heads of
Service at a final meeting, and actions are agreed. An action plan is incorporated
into the final report including details of responsible officers and agreed
implementation dates. There are occasions when a director may also be
consulted, particularly for audits which span a number of departments.

6.

Other Courses of Action Considered but Rejected
Not applicable.

Page 29

7.

Resource Consequences
This report includes a summary of information about the work undertaken by
Orbis Internal Audit on behalf of Horsham District Council, and therefore there are
no direct financial or HR consequences.

8.

Legal Consequences
There are no legal consequences. Where compliance issues are identified during
audit fieldwork, the Head of Legal & Democratic Services (or relevant legal
specialist) will be consulted.

9.

Risk Assessment
All internal audit work is undertaken using a risk based approach.

10.

Other Considerations
Internal audit is a reporting function and there are no consequences in respect of
Crime & Disorder; Human Rights; Equality & Diversity; or Sustainability. However
these areas are considered where appropriate during audit fieldwork.

Page 30

ANNEXE A

INTERNAL AUDIT
ANNUAL REPORT & OPINION
2020/2021

Horsham District Council

Page 31

1.

Internal Control and the Role of Internal Audit

1.1
All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972
Local Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The full role and
scope of the Council’s Internal Audit Service is set out within our Internal Audit Charter.
1.2
It is a management responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems
and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed, and
outcomes achieved.
1.3
Annually the Chief Internal Auditor is required to provide an overall opinion on the
Council’s internal control environment, risk management arrangements and governance
framework to support the Annual Governance Statement.
2.

Delivery of the Internal Audit Plan

2.1
The Council’s Internal Audit Strategy and Plan is updated each year based on a
combination of management’s assessment of risk (including that set out within the corporate
and departmental risk registers) and our own risk assessment of the Council’s major systems
and other auditable areas. The process of producing the plan involves extensive consultation
with a range of stakeholders to ensure that their views on risks and current issues, within
individual departments and corporately, are identified and considered.
2.2
The impact of Covid 19 has made 2020/21 a unique year for Internal Audit as was the
case for the vast majority of the services we have audited. This has meant that we have had
to adapt our working practices, reschedule some audits and make more amendments to the
annual audit plan than would normally be the case.
2.3
Notwithstanding the above, we have still been able to deliver sufficient audit and
assurance activity within the year to enable us to form an overall annual audit opinion for the
Council in the normal way. This includes delivery of the revised programme of audits and
investigating any allegations of fraud and other irregularities.
2.4
All adjustments to the audit plan were agreed with the relevant departments and
reported throughout the year to the Audit Committee as part of our periodic internal audit
progress reports. It should be noted that whilst there were a number of audits reports still in
draft at the year-end, the outcomes from this work have been taken into account in forming
our annual opinion. Full details of these audits will be reported to the Audit Committee once
each of the reports have been finalised with management.
3.

Audit Opinion

3.1
No assurance can ever be absolute; however, based on the internal audit work
completed, the Chief Internal Auditor can provide reasonable1 assurance that Horsham
District Council has in place an adequate and effective framework of governance, risk
management and internal control for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.
1

This opinion is based on the activities set out in paragraph 4 below. It is therefore important to emphasise
that it is not possible or practicable to audit all activities of the Council within a single year.

Page 32

1

3.2
Further information on the basis of this opinion is provided below. Overall, whilst the
majority of audit opinions issued in the year were generally positive, internal audit activities
have identified a higher than normal incidence of deficiencies where the operation of internal
controls has not been fully effective, as reflected by the one minimal and seven partial opinion
assurances issued in the year. The Chief Executive and Director of Corporate Resources
consider that the extended lockdown period is a significant contributory factor, as
opportunities for adhoc informal discussions with statutory officers about rules and
regulations (that would normally take place) have been inhibited. It is also important to note
that senior managers have, in some instances, directed internal audit resources to review
areas where it was envisaged that there may be some issues.
3.3
Where improvements in controls are required as a result of our work, we have agreed
appropriate remedial action with management.
3.4
There is clear evidence that the organisation is tackling governance and control issues
at the most senior level. For example, a presentation has recently been given by the Director
of Corporate Reources to all managers, highlighting a number of governance breaches that
had come to light during 2020/21, and summarising the audit findings from our corporate
compliance audits undertaken during the last few years. There is a robust corporate action
plan in place which includes cascading expectations to all levels of the organisaiton via team
meetings, staff briefings and appropriate training.
4.

Basis of Opinion

4.1

The opinion and the level of assurance given takes into account:










All audit work completed during 2020/21, planned and unplanned;
Follow up of actions from previous audits;
Management responses to audit findings;
The specific awareness briefings and training outlined in 3.4 above;
Ongoing advice and liaison with management, including regular attendance by the Chief
Internal Auditor at organisational meetings relating to risk, governance and internal
control matters;
Effects of significant changes in the Council’s systems;
The extent of resources available to deliver the audit plan;
Quality of the internal audit service’s performance.

4.2
No limitations have been placed on the scope of Internal Audit during 2020/21,
however, as explained above, Covid 19 and remote working have impacted on how our work
was delivered, with a number of specific audits having to be rescheduled or in some cases,
replaced with other activities.
5.

Key Internal Audit Issues for 2020/21

5.1
The overall audit opinion should be read in conjunction with the key issues set out in
the following paragraphs. These issues, and the overall opinion, have been taken into account
when preparing and approving the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.

Page 33

2

5.2
The internal audit plan is delivered each year through a combination of formal reviews
with standard audit opinions, direct support for projects and new system initiatives,
investigations, and ad hoc advice. The following graph provides a summary of the outcomes
from all audits finalised during 2020/21:

5.3
A full listing of all completed audits and opinions for the year is included in Appendix
B, along with an explanation of each of the assurance levels. The results of all audit work
completed is reported to the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and Audit Committee throughout
the year.
5.4
A total of eight audits received minimal or partial assurance opinions within the year,
as follows:









Travel Claims & Expenses
Cultural Compliance (Capitol) Follow up
Cultural Compliance (Building Control)
Cultural Compliance (Parks & Countryside)
BACS
Purchase Cards
Community Lottery
Emergency Planning Follow up

5.5
Whilst actions arising from these reviews will be followed up by Internal Audit, either
through specific reviews or via established action tracking arrangements, it is important that
management continue to take prompt action to secure the necessary improvements in
internal control.
5.6
At the time of writing this report, there were three audit reports that were still at draft
report stage and had therefore not been formally issued. Two of these have since been issued,
and have therefore been included in Appendix B (but have not been summarised in Annexe
B). They will both be reported to the Audit Committee at the next meeting in September. The

Page 34

3

other draft report has not yet been finalised, so will be included in the Annual Report and
Opinion for 2021/22.
Key Financial Systems
5.7
Given the substantial values involved, each year a significant proportion of our time is
spent reviewing the Council’s key financial systems. Of those completed during 2020/21, all
have resulted in either substantial or reasonable assurance being provided over the control
environment.
Other Internal Audit Activity
5.8
During the year, internal audit has continued to provide advice, support and
independent challenge to the organisation on risk, governance and internal control matters
across a range of areas. This includes participation in the following groups:




Officer Corporate Governance Group.
Officer Risk Management Group.
Officer Project Review Group.

5.9
As well as actively contributing to, and advising these groups, we utilise the
intelligence gained from the discussions to inform our own current and future work
programmes to help ensure our work continues to focus on the most important risk areas.
Anti-Fraud and Corruption
5.10 Horsham DC has in place a Counter Fraud Strategy that sets out its commitment to
preventing, detecting and deterring fraud.
5.11 Internal Audit coordinated the recent submission of Council datasets for the biennial
NFI exercise. The results from the data matching were provided to the Council on 31 January
2021 and Internal Audit will be liaising with the relevant departments to ensure that flagged
matches are investigated and actioned appropriately.
5.12 Fraud risk assessments are regularly reviewed to ensure that the current fraud threat
to the Council has been considered and appropriate mitigating actions identified. We have
updated the risk assessment to include new and emerging threats as a result of Covid 19. This
includes potential threats to payroll, staff frauds relating to home working and cyber frauds.
5.13 During 2020/21, the Internal Audit Counter Fraud Team continued to deliver both
reactive and proactive fraud services across the Orbis Partnership.
5.14 Any internal control weaknesses identified during our investigation work are reported
to management, and actions for improvement are agreed. This work is also used to inform
future Internal Audit activity.
5.15 Two cases were investigated during the year by the Orbis Internal Audit CounterFraud team following receipt of intelligence from external sources. In addition, advice was

Page 35

4

provided to a Head of Service following an irregularity which resulted in two employees being
dismissed.
5.16 Whilst it is our opinion that the control environment in relation to fraud and
corruption is satisfactory, and the incidence of fraud is considered low for an organisation of
this size and diversity, we continue to be alert to the risk of fraud. This includes working with
local fraud hubs; the aim of which is to deliver a strong and co-ordinated approach to
preventing, detecting and responding to fraud. Internal Audit continues to be proactive in
the identification and prevention of potential fraud and corruption activity across the
Authority and in raising awareness amongst staff.
Amendments to the Audit Plan
5.17
In accordance with proper professional practice, the Internal Audit plan for the year
was kept under regular review to ensure that the service continued to focus its resources in
the highest priority areas based on an assessment of risk. Through discussions with
management, the following reviews were added to the original audit plan during the year:



Review of the Community Hubs (Covid-19 Red Response); and
Purchase Cards, including areas of spend.

5.18
In order to allow these additional audits to take place, the following audits have been
removed or deferred from the audit plan and, where appropriate, will be considered for
inclusion in future audit plans as part of the overall risk assessment completed during the
annual audit planning process. These changes have been made on the basis of risk
prioritisation and/or as a result of developments within the service areas concerned requiring
a rescheduling of audits:






6.

Capitol Bar and Catering Facility;
Volunteers;
Cultural Compliance (Hop Oast) follow-up;
Capital Grant Funding / External Funding;
T1 Access Control;
Asset Management – Data Migration Assurance.
Internal Audit Performance

6.1
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the internal audit service to
be reviewed annually against the Standards, supplemented with a full and independent
external assessment at least every five years. The following paragraphs provide a summary of
our performance during 2020/21, including the results of our first independent PSIAS
assessment; an update on our Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme; and the year
end results against our agreed targets.
PSIAS
6.2
The Standards cover the following aspects of internal audit, all of which were
independently assessed during 2018 by the South West Audit Partnership (SWAP) and subject
to a refreshed self-assessment in 2020/21:


Purpose, authority and responsibility;

Page 36

5












Independence and objectivity;
Proficiency and due professional care;
Quality assurance and improvement programme;
Managing the internal audit activity;
Nature of work;
Engagement planning;
Performing the engagement;
Communicating results;
Monitoring progress;
Communicating the acceptance of risks.

6.3
The results of the SWAP review and our latest self-assessment found a high level of
conformance with the Standards with only a small number of minor areas for improvement.
Work has taken place to address these issues, none of which were considered significant, and
these are subject to ongoing monitoring as part of our quality assurance and improvement
plan.
Key Service Targets
6.4
Performance against our previously agreed service targets is set out in Appendix A.
Overall, client satisfaction levels remain high, demonstrated through the results of our post
audit questionnaires, discussions with key stakeholders throughout the year, and annual
consultation meetings with senior officers.
6.5
As reported, a small number of outstanding reviews were nearing completion at year
end and, due to the impact of the Covid 19 crisis, there were a small number of reports still
in draft at the year end. Where this is the case, this is noted against the title of the audit in
this report.
6.6
Significantly, we have completed 97% of the 2020/21 audit plan, exceeding our target
of 90%.
6.7
Internal audit will continue to liaise with the Council’s external auditors (Ernst &
Young) to ensure that the Council obtains maximum value from the combined audit resources
available.
6.8
In addition to this annual summary, the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and Audit
Committee will continue to receive performance information on internal audit throughout
the year as part of our quarterly progress reports.

Page 37

6

Appendix A
Internal Audit Performance Indicators 2020/21
Aspect of
Service
Quality

Productivity
and Process
Efficiency
Compliance
with
Professional
Standards

Orbis IA
Performance
Indicator
Annual Audit Plan
agreed by Audit
Committee
Annual Audit Report
and Opinion

Target

RAG
Score

Actual
Performance

By end April

G

By end July

G

Customer
Satisfaction Levels

90%
satisfied

G

Approved by the Audit
Committee on 1st April
2020.
2019/20 report approved
by the Audit Committee
on 15th July 2020.
100%

Audit Plan –
completion to draft
report stage
Public Sector
Internal Audit
Standards

90%

G

97.14%

Conforms

G

January 2018 – External
assessment by the South
West Audit Partnership
gave an opinion of
‘Generally Conforms’ –
the highest of three
possible ratings.
June 2021 - Internal SelfAssessment completed.
There were no major
areas of non-compliance
with PSIAS identified.
June 2021 - Internal
Quality Review
completed, no major
areas of non-compliance
with our own processes
identified.

Relevant legislation
such as the Police
and Criminal
Evidence Act,
Criminal Procedures
and Investigations
Act

Conforms

Page 38

G

No evidence of noncompliance identified

7

Aspect of
Service
Outcome
and degree
of influence
Our staff

Orbis IA
Performance
Indicator
Implementation of
management actions
agreed in response
to audit findings
Professionally
Qualified/Accredited

Target

RAG
Score

Actual
Performance

95% for high
priority
agreed
actions
80%

G

98%

G

91%

Appendix B
Summary of Opinions for Internal Audit Reports issued during 2020/21
Substantial Assurance:
(Explanation of assurance levels provided at the bottom of this document)

Audit Title

Department

Main Accounting

Finance

Data In Transit

Technology Services

Reasonable Assurance:
Audit Title

Department

Budgetary Control

Finance & Performance

Parking Income

Parking & Waste

Cultural Compliance (Property & Facilities) Follow up

Property & Facilities

Ulysses Application Audit

Environmental Health & Licensing

Procurement

Corporate

Treasury Management

Finance & Performance

Accounts Receivable

Finance & Performance

Accounts Payable

Finance & Performance

Council Tax

LGSS

Business Rates

LGSS

Housing Benefits

LGSS

Payroll

Finance & Performance

Jigsaw Computer Application

Housing & Community Services

Page 39

8

Partial Assurance:
Audit Title

Department

Cultural Compliance (Capitol) Follow up

Leisure & Culture

Cultural Compliance (Building Control)

Development & Building Control

BACS

Finance & Performance

Community Lottery

Housing & Community Services

Purchase Cards

Finance & Performance

Cultural Compliance (Parks & Countryside) (Draft)

Leisure & Culture

Emergency Planning (Draft)

Housing & Community Services

Minimal Assurance:
Audit Title

Department

Travel Claims & Expenses

Corporate

Other Audit Activity undertaken during 2020/21 (including direct support for projects and
new system initiatives):
Audit Title

Department

Community Hubs

Housing & Community Services

Declaration of Interests – Corporate Support

Corporate

Audit Opinions and Definitions
Opinion

Definition

Substantial
Assurance

Controls are in place and are operating as expected to manage key risks to the
achievement of system or service objectives.

Reasonable
Assurance

Most controls are in place and are operating as expected to manage key risks to
the achievement of system or service objectives.

Partial
Assurance

There are weaknesses in the system of control and/or the level of noncompliance is such as to put the achievement of the system or service objectives
at risk.

Minimal
Assurance

Controls are generally weak or non-existent, leaving the system open to the risk
of significant error or fraud. There is a high risk to the ability of the
system/service to meet its objectives.

Page 40

9

ANNEXE B
Summary of Key Audit Findings for Quarter 4 2020/21
Purchase Cards
1.1.

Purchase cards are a flexible way for staff to buy goods and services, with the benefits
including being able to buy direct from suppliers, enabling more efficient purchasing and
better pricing. The Director of Corporate Resources requested a review of purchase card
spend throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, to ensure corporate procedures were being
followed.

1.2.

The purpose of this audit was to provide assurance that controls are in place to meet the
following objectives:


Payments made are for goods and services that are necessary, and solely for Council use.



Purchase card expenditure is submitted with robust supporting evidence, and
transactions are authorised by an appropriate officer.

1.3.

Our work identified a number of areas where improvement was required and, as a result, we
were only able to provide an opinion of Partial Assurance. A number of areas of weakness
were identified as part of our work, and in particular, there was a lack of compliance by card
holders and authorising managers with the Council‘s procedures.

1.4.

In response to this audit, an action plan was agreed with management that included the
following:


All purchase card users to read and apply the card holder manual guidance.



When there is a change of name, or a purchase card is no longer required, the old card
should be destroyed, and the cardholder should delete card details from all on-line
payment sites.



All purchase card users and authorising officers have been reminded of the importance
of:
o

Timely card administration

o

The importance and need to clearly document the reasons for their purchases.

o

The requirement to code their transactions appropriately, and attach the
appropriate evidence of the purchase to the transaction.

o

The importance and need to claim VAT correctly and, if applicable, to attach
appropriate VAT evidence of the purchase.



All authorising managers have been reminded of the need to check that appropriate
narrative has been added to each transaction; that the transaction has been correctly
coded; and that appropriate evidence is attached.



It was agreed by the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) in April 2021, that purchase card users
who persistently fail to comply with the required process will have their card taken away
and may be subject to disciplinary action. Authorising managers may also be subject to
disciplinary action if they fail to undertake their management control checks.



The purchase card guidance has been updated.



Training has been offered, by the Finance and Performance team, to all users and
authorisers, including one to one training.

Page 41

Accounts Payable
1.5.

Accounts Payable (AP) is the system through which the Council makes payments to its
creditors or suppliers. Between 1 April 2020 and 8 January 2021, 6,436 invoices, with a total
value of approximately £120m, had been paid, for goods received or services rendered. The
total value is inclusive of the precepts paid to West Sussex County Council for dwellings within
the district.

1.6.

The purpose of this audit was to provide assurance that controls are in place to meet the
following objectives:


Orders are raised for goods, works and services for bona fide services in accordance with
the needs of the Council.



All payments (including non-order invoices, cheque requisitions and urgent payments)
are subject to review and approval to ensure payments are valid and goods, works or
services have been received and are correctly processed.



Only vendors that meet the needs of the Council and that do not already exist in the
TechnologyOne (T1) system are set up. All vendors’ details are maintained accurately in
T1.



Transactions in the Accounts Payable system are completely and accurately transferred
to (or reflected in) the General Ledger.

1.7.

As there had been a recent and extensive review of BACs payments as part of the 2020/21
audit plan, it was agreed that the BACs process would not be reviewed during this audit.

1.8.

In completing this review, we were able to provide an opinion of Reasonable Assurance. We
found that the Accounts Payable (AP) system is well controlled as the service operates to a
high level of accuracy, and no material processing errors were identified. Payments are
authorised by an appropriate level officer. Vendor creation and changes to vendor records
are well controlled. We also found that periodic reconciliations are undertaken between
accounts payable data and the General Ledger (GL) which are subject to review and approval
by a senior officer.

1.9.

However, some opportunities to strengthen controls further were identified. These included
the need to ensure that:


Officers are reminded that, where invoices are undisputed, these are processed in a
timely manner in order to meet the supplier’s payment terms.



The Council’s Finance system, T1, now includes automated controls that provide a low
tolerance limit for payment. Where invoices exceed the original value stated (i.e. above
this predefined tolerance limit), these invoices will be approved by an appropriate officer.

Accounts Receivable
1.10.

The Accounts Receivable function is responsible for ensuring that all income due to the
Council is collected effectively and efficiently, banked promptly, and is correctly accounted
for. Between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020, 34,483 invoices were raised to a value of
approximately £20.2m, offset by 1,461 credit notes, with a total value of approximately
£1.6m.

1.11.

The purpose of the audit was to provide assurance that controls are in place to meet the
following objectives:

Page 42

1.12.



All income generating activities are identified and accurately raised to customers.



A customer account maintenance process is in place and operating effectively.



Amendments to invoices are correct and authorised.



Collection and debt recovery is managed efficiently and effectively.



Write-offs are processed accurately and correctly authorised.



Payments are received and recorded against the correct debtor account in a timely
manner.



Reconciliations between the Debtors system and the General Ledger are undertaken on
a regular basis.



Debt recovery performance is monitored and reported.

As a result of our work, we were able to provide an opinion of Reasonable Assurance in this
area. We found that all income generating activities are identified within each directorate,
and officers in those teams have been assigned an Accounts Receivable user status within the
Finance system. There are regular reconciliations undertaken and discrepancies are
investigated that are reviewed and receive appropriate senior officer authorisation. In
addition, there is appropriate segregation of duties in the process. The Council’s Scheme of
Delegation is adhered to and approval is sought from an appropriate officer for the write-off
of unrecoverable debt. However, areas for improvement have been agreed with management
to ensure that:


Invoices are raised regularly and promptly, ideally within 10 days of the debt arising and
preferably in advance of the service being issued. A reminder will be sent to all staff
reaffirming this requirement.



Sufficient and robust evidence of debt is generated and retained, in case legal action
needs to be pursued for non-payment. A reminder will be sent to all staff regarding the
information that should be retained.



Recurring invoices are promptly cancelled. A reminder will be sent to all service users.

Payroll
1.13.

One of the largest areas of expenditure for the Council is the payment of employees for
providing frontline and support services. The total gross annual salary costs for the Council
for 2019/20 was just under £13.8m. As at September 2020, there were 454 staff employed
by the Council, which equates to 401 FTEs (full time equivalents).

1.14.

The Payroll function is outsourced to Capita, who are charged with paying employees
accurately and in accordance with established policies. Therefore, controls over pay runs and
BACs transmissions are not included within the scope of this review.

1.15.

The purpose of this audit was to provide assurance that controls are in place to meet the
following objectives:


Starters are properly approved, and pay is calculated and paid from the correct dates.



Leavers are removed from the payroll in a timely manner and paid correctly and
accurately to the correct dates.



Permanent variations to pay are properly approved, calculated and paid from the correct
dates.

Page 43



Payroll data is regularly reconciled to the General Ledger.



Temporary payments (including additional hours and payment to casual staff) are
correctly authorised prior to processing.



Changes to data are reviewed, accurately input and authorised.

1.16.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the associated lockdown restrictions, there have been a
number of adaptations to usual working practices, with many officers working remotely at the
current time. All testing of starter and leaver documentation was undertaken using Microsoft
Teams, with the auditor viewing supporting documentation on this platform. Therefore, this
testing was more time consuming that in previous years and, as a result, with the agreement
of the Director of Corporate Resources, the scope of the audit was reduced and permanent
variations to pay were not reviewed (these will covered as part of future audits).

1.17.

As a result of our work, we were able to provide an opinion of Reasonable Assurance in this
area. We found that there is appropriate separation of duties in the payroll process to reduce
the risk of fraud or error. We also found that changes to non-standing payroll data are
reviewed, accurately input and authorised. In addition, overpayments are identified,
investigated and appropriate action is taken. However, improvements have been agreed with
management in a number of areas:


The process for the verification of new starter identification documents will be
strengthened and any copies of employee identification, that are not signed by the
appropriate manager and dated on the front, will be rejected by the HR and OD
Department.



When the Elections team move to a new staff management system, all individuals
engaged as casual workers for elections work will be asked to provide copies of their
eligibility documents so that these can be checked.



Internal guidance will be developed for approving and submitting casual electoral
canvasser claims. This will include examples of appropriate submissions. In addition, the
paper based casual claim form will be adapted to be more precise and easier for casual
canvasser workers to complete. This is an interim measure while an electronic form is
developed.

Main Accounting
1.18.

The corporate Finance system, T1, is the Council’s main source of financial information and
provides the platform for both the Council’s budget management and the production of its
statutory accounts.

1.19.

The purpose of the audit was to provide assurance that controls are in place to meet the
following objectives:


Comprehensive guidance, procedures, and training notes, as well as financial regulations,
are in place for the operation of the Main Accounting System in accordance with statutory
guidance and accounting standards.



Transactions in the feeder system are completely and accurately transferred to (or are
reflected in) the General Ledger.



Journals are appropriately described, authorised, complete and valid.



Suspense and holding accounts are monitored, entries are investigated, and appropriate
action is taken to resolve any issues in a timely manner.

Page 44



The structure of the main accounting system reflects the structure of the organisation.



Bank reconciliations are regularly prepared by an independent finance officer with
evidence of separation of duties, with a review of the reconciliation by an appropriate
senior officer.

1.20.

In completing this review, we were able to provide an opinion of Substantial Assurance in this
area. We found that there is a robust bank reconciliation process undertaken daily that is
reviewed and subject to appropriate officer approval. There is segregation of duties between
officers within the main accounting system. Evidence is obtained and retained to support
journals posted and their approval. In addition, the suspense account is monitored, entries
are investigated, and appropriate action is taken to resolve any issues in a timely manner.

1.21.

There was one area for improvement agreed with management which related to enhancing
the internal process notes.

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Report to Audit Committee
7th July 2021
By the Director of Corporate Resources
INFORMATION REPORT
Not exempt

Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021
Executive Summary
The annual review of the Council's governance, risk management and internal control
arrangements has been undertaken to support the production of the Annual Governance
Statement for 2020/2021. This review included information and assurance gathering
processes to ensure that the published Annual Governance Statement is correct as well as
a review of the Council's Governance framework against the best practice framework
devised by CIPFA/SOLACE.
The aim of the review process is to ensure that the Council has effective governance, risk
management and internal control processes in place to assist with accountability and the
delivery of objectives. Additionally, the review process has identified any shortfalls in these
arrangements to enable them to be addressed.

Recommendations
That the Committee is recommended:
i)

To approve the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2020/2021.

Reasons for Recommendations
i)

As part of good governance, it is important that the Annual Governance Statement is
approved by the Audit Committee

Background Papers: Supporting evidence, Head of Service Assurance Statements, and
the Annual Internal Audit Report.
Consultation: The Senior Leadership Team, Monitoring Officer, Head of Housing and
Community Services, Head of Leisure and Culture, Head of Finance & Performance, Head
of HR & OD, Head of Technology Services and the Chief Internal Auditor.
Wards affected: All
Contact: Jane Eaton, Director of Corporate Resources.

Page
47
1



Attachments:
Appendix A: Annual Governance Statement 2020/2021
Appendix B: Local Code of Corporate Governance
Appendix C: Governance Assurance Framework
Appendix D: AGS Action Plan 2020/2021
Appendix E: AGS Action Plan 2021/2022

Page2 48

Background Information
1

Introduction and Background

1.1

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require the Council to review,
at least annually, the effectiveness of its governance arrangements and publish an
Annual Governance Statement.

1.2

Senior officers have been consulted and supporting documentation has been
updated to reflect the current position. A paragraph regarding COVID-19 has been
included in section 15 of the Annual Governance Statement.

2

Relevant Council Policy
The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Annual Governance Statement
in accordance with the Committee’s terms of reference.

3

Details

3.1

The Annual Governance Statement for 2020/2021 is attached in Appendix A.

4

Next Steps

4.1

The Committee is asked to approve the final version of the Annual Governance
Statement at the July meeting.

5

Outcome of Consultations

5.1

Key officers have been consulted when compiling the Annual Governance Statement,
including the Senior Leadership Team; Monitoring Officer; Head of Housing and
Community Services; Head of Leisure and Culture; Head of Finance & Performance;
Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development; and the Chief Internal
Auditor. In addition, Heads of Service have completed and signed Annual Assurance
Statements covering their areas of responsibility.

6

Other Courses of Action Considered but Rejected

6.1

None.

7

Resource Consequences

7.1

There are no direct staffing consequences arising from this report.

8

Legal Consequences

8.1

Regulation 6 of The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 requires that:6.—(1) A relevant authority must, each financial year—
(a) conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
required by regulation 3; and

Page
49
3

(b) prepare an annual governance statement;
(2) If the relevant authority referred to in paragraph (1) is a Category 1 authority,
following the review, it must—
(a) consider the findings of the review required by paragraph (1)(a)—
(i) by a committee; or
(ii) by members of the authority meeting as a whole; and
(b) approve the annual governance statement prepared in accordance with
paragraph (1)(b) by resolution of—
(i) a committee; or
(ii) members of the authority meeting as a whole.

8.2

In 2016 CIPFA/SOLACE published a revised framework for Corporate Governance:
"Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework". This framework
provides a useful and practical update and follows seven core principles of good
governance. The Framework urges local authorities to review and report on the
effectiveness of the governance arrangements.

9

Risk Assessment

9.1

There are no risks associated with this report.

10

Other Considerations

10.1

This report has no effect on Crime & Disorder; Human Rights; Equality & Diversity
or Sustainability.

Page4 50

Horsham District Council
Annual Governance Statement 2020 - 2021
1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY
Horsham District Council conducts its business in accordance with the law, regulations
and proper standards and it protects public money from waste, extravagance or
misappropriation. The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to
make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way it provides its
services, focusing on economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
Horsham District Council approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance
on 22 March 2017. This is consistent with the principles of the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), and Society of Local Authority Chief
Executives (SOLACE) Framework for Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government. Residents and businesses can find a copy of the Local Code on our
website. This statement explains how Horsham District Council complied with the Code
during 2020/21 and how it meets the requirements of regulation 6(1)(b), the Accounts
and Audit (England) regulations 2015 that require all relevant bodies to prepare an
Annual Governance Statement.
2. THE GOVERNANCE ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK
Horsham District Council has a Governance Assurance Framework in place for the year
ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Report and
Statement of Accounts for the 2020/21 financial year.
The Council’s Governance Framework explains how the Council controls and manages
its services and strategies to deliver the Council’s aims and objectives.
The core principles of the Council’s Governance Framework are:
A: Integrity; Ethical Values; the Rule of Law.
B: Openness; engaging with institutional stakeholders; engaging with individual citizens
and service users.
C: Defining Outcomes including sustainable, economic, social and environmental
benefits.
D: Determining and planning interventions; to ensure delivery of intended outcomes.
E: Developing the capacity through leadership and other individuals.
F: Managing data, risks and performance; robust internal control; strong public
financial management.
G: Delivering accountability through good practice in transparency, reporting and audit.
3. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, VISION AND OBJECTIVES
The Council’s Corporate Plan outlines the Council’s vision, aims and objectives and
aligns these with its Governance Assurance Framework. The Council approved its
Corporate Plan on 12 February 2020 and covers the period 2019 - 2023.
• The Council aims to deliver high quality services that meet the needs of the local
community. This is set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan for Horsham which is the
core of the Council’s purpose and vision and defines the Council’s key priorities and
strategic aims. This is formally reviewed and updated each year.

Page 51

• The Corporate Plan is supported by the Medium-Term Financial Strategy and the
Council’s annual budget to ensure the implications on the Council’s finances are
considered when the objectives are set.
• Departmental strategies and annual service plans are developed which support the
delivery of the Corporate Plan, by identifying how each department contributes to the
delivery of the overall aims and objectives of the Council.
• The Council’s Performance Management Framework includes key performance
indicators associated with the Corporate Plan. Performance on a basket of key
corporate indicators is reported to the Senior Leadership Team, the Cabinet Leads
and to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
• Every report submitted to the Cabinet or regulatory committees outlines how the
recommended action helps to achieve one or more of the Corporate Plan priorities.
4. MEMBERS AND OFFICERS WORKING TOGETHER
The Council’s Constitution gives guidance on the roles and responsibilities of Members,
the Chief Executive and Chief Officers. The Governance Committee leads on changes
to the Constitution including the scheme of delegation.
The Leader, Cabinet Members, and Chairmen and Vice Chairmen of standing
committees receive briefings from senior management on a regular basis and Members
receive training as part of the induction process.
A review of governance arrangements at the Council was reported to Full Council on 27
April 2016. The Governance Review focused on ensuring Horsham District Council has
the most suitable and effective governance arrangements. The Council continues to
operate the Cabinet Executive Model supported by a number of Policy Development
Advisory Groups. The Governance Committee completed a further review of the
Constitution during 2018/19 with a particular focus on the effectiveness of planning and
decision making. This was reported to Council in April 2019. During 2020/21 the
Governance Committee completed a review of the role of the Policy Development
Advisory Groups. In addition, the operation of the Constitution is under constant review
by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Governance Committee to ensure that
its aims and principles are given full effect.
During 2020/21 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee carried out its work through the
whole Committee with up to three Task and Finish Groups and no standing subcommittees.
The Council participates in a number of partnerships with other local authorities. In
particular Revenues and Benefits, Building Control, Internal Audit and Procurement.
From 1 April 2018 the Council delegated its Revenues and Benefits service to the LGSS
Councils for five years. From 1 April 2021 LGSS has been disbanded following the local
government reorganisation in Northamptonshire. Two of the key partners
Northamptonshire County Council and Northampton Borough Council cease to exist on
31 March 2021 and Cambridgeshire County Council has withdrawn from any further
involvement in the service. The only remaining original member of the partnership,
Milton Keynes, has taken over the running of the agreement until the end of its period.
The future of the Revenues and Benefits service will be reviewed during 2021/22.

Page 52

The 2019/20 trial of an extended procurement partnership with Mole Valley was
successful and confirmed as an ongoing relationship in September 2020. In March 2021
Cabinet approved a continuation of the four way procurement partnership for four years,
plus an extension of another four years if the good working of this partnership continued
by 2025. The Council also engages in local community development work with other
local public bodies.
5. VALUES AND HIGH STANDARDS OF BEHAVIOUR
The Council has incorporated in its Constitution a Member Code of Conduct and an
Employee Code of Conduct. A register of declared interests is held for officers. All officebased officers are required to submit an annual declaration as well as all officers making
declarations when needed. The extension of the officer requirement to all office-based
officers was introduced in January 2020 and officers refreshed their declarations in
January 2021. Office based officers have now also declared second jobs and family
relationships with other officers and Members of the Council.
Members’ Registers are available on the Council’s website. Members review their
registers annually. Members ensure that if there are changes to their interests that the
Monitoring Officer for the Council is notified of these changes. The Standards
Committee promotes and maintains high standards of conduct by Councillors and also
considers whether a complaint or allegation of misconduct by a Member should be
investigated. The Council has appointed two Independent People in accordance with
the Localism Act 2011. The Council has two Parish Representatives who attend the
Standards Committee.
As part of an ongoing Organisational Development Programme to ensure we have
employees with the right skills, behaviours and attitudes, the organisation has developed
core values of ‘customer focus’, ‘achieving excellence’ and ‘our people’. The
performance management process for staff changed in March 2020 from an annual
appraisal to a minimum of four recorded performance and development discussions
each year.
The culture of the organisation sets the foundation for the prevention of fraud and
corruption by creating an environment that is based on openness and honesty in all
Council activities.
The Council has the following policies and procedures in place which aim to prevent or
deal with any instances of fraud, dishonesty or malpractice.
•
•
•
•
•
•

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy
Anti-Money Laundering Policy
Whistleblowing Policy
HR Disciplinary Policies
Council’s Equality Scheme
Information Security Policy

The Council’s IT Security Officer updated the Council’s IT Security Policy during
2020/21.

Page 53

6.

TAKING INFORMED AND TRANSPARENT DECISIONS AND MANAGING RISK
The Council’s Risk Management arrangements are reviewed for effectiveness by the
Audit Committee to ensure the process is embedded in the culture of the authority.
All Heads of Service are responsible for implementing strategies at departmental level
ensuring adequate communication, training and the assessment and monitoring of risks.
All officers are responsible for considering risk as part of everyday activities and provide
input to the risk management process. Each Directorate Management Team reviews
their service risks each quarter and each Project Team their Project Risks no less than
once a quarter. An officer-led Risk Management Group reviews the corporate risk
register quarterly before it proceeds to the Senior Leadership Team and the Audit
Committee for review.
The Chief Internal Auditor provides an annual opinion on the Council’s governance
arrangements, risk management systems and the overall control environment in his end
of year report to the Audit Committee.

7. CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY OF MEMBERS AND OFFICERS
Training programmes for Council employees are identified from their four-six weekly
recorded “conversation” with their manager. All new recruits have a series of basic
courses in key areas such as health and safety, data protection, IT security and GDPR
which they must complete before they pass their induction, and all staff complete an
annual refresher in these core subject areas.
New Members to the Council receive induction training in key areas including the
Constitution, ethical governance, decision-making processes and the Council’s Code of
Members’ Conduct. The induction also includes an introduction to the Council’s services.
All new Members are allocated a ‘buddy’ who is a senior Council officer tasked with
helping the new Members to settle into the Council. There is an ongoing training
programme of Member briefings on important areas of the Council’s work. There is also
ongoing training covering specific issues in a variety of areas.
8. ENGAGEMENT WITH LOCAL PEOPLE AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS
The Council works hard to communicate its aims for the District. It conducts a wide range
of service specific surveys to ascertain the views and needs of its residents. The Council
consults with Parish Councils and the Rural Towns Forum (i.e. a consortium of parish
level Community Partnerships). It is a leading partner within Community Safety and
Health and Wellbeing Partnerships, linking statutory and non-statutory agencies to
provide a coordinated approach to delivery of the programme across the District. The
Council works with voluntary and community sector partners to ensure effective provision
of community engagement activities across the district. These partnerships share
feedback from their own stakeholder consultations.
These groups help the Council to assess the priorities of different sections of the
community that have different needs, particularly surrounding grants and funding, Parish
Councils and areas that need targeted service delivery. Compliments and feedback
received are monitored and reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee as part of
the quarterly performance management report.

Page 54

9. DETAILS OF KEY GOVERNANCE MECHANISMS
Sources of assurance received for each of the core principles are set out in the
Horsham District Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance. (See Appendix B).
10. WHOLLY OWNED BODIES
The Council owns 100% of a housing company, Horsham District Homes Limited, which
owns 100% shares of a holding company, Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Limited.
The Council’s Director of Community Services, Head of Property and Facilities and the
Corporate Accountant are directors of Horsham District Homes Ltd. This company builds
domestic dwellings.
The Council’s Director of Community Services, the Head of Property and Facilities, Head
of Housing and Community Services, and the Corporate Accountant are directors of
Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Ltd. This company lets and operates owned or
leased real estate.
The Cabinet and Full Council make decisions relating to these subsidiaries. Full Council
approves funds for the companies to operate. These are loans and equity within the
development company. Full Council considers any land disposals to the development
company that trigger Secretary of State sign-off requirement. The Cabinet reviews each
individual development business case and approves the allocation of S106 commuted
sums funding to enable the property holding company to acquire the built units from the
development company.
11. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
The Council’s governance framework includes decision-making processes set out in the
Council’s Constitution, together with rules and procedures. The Council operates the
Cabinet Executive Model.
Mechanisms for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Council’s
governance arrangements throughout the year include:
•

•
•
•
•

The Council comprises 48 Members and, as a whole, takes decisions on budget and
policy framework matters as defined by the Constitution, including deciding on the
aims and objectives of the Council as set out in the Corporate Plan and other
decisions that are reserved in law to be taken only by the Council. In February 2020
the Council approved a new Corporate Plan for the current Council term.
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is able to scrutinise the decisions of the
Cabinet and maintains an overview of Council activities which includes monitoring
performance management.
The Cabinet is ultimately responsible for considering overall financial and
performance management.
The Standards Committee meets quarterly and at every meeting considers an update
report on complaints against Councillors. The Committee also keeps under review
the Council’s policies and procedures for maintaining high ethical standards.
The Governance Committee meets quarterly and reviews governance with regard to
the reviewing and revising of the Council’s Constitution.

Page 55

•

•

•
•

The Audit Committee meets quarterly to review the Council’s risk management and
control arrangements. It also reviews the Council’s Treasury Management and
Investment Strategies and has delegated authority to review and approve the
statutory financial statements and consider reports from the Council’s external
auditors.
The role of the Director of Corporate Resources (as Chief Financial Officer) includes
stewardship and probity in the use of resources and performance, extracting best
value from the use of those resources. The Chief Financial Officer complies with the
CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Finance Officer in Local Government.
This post also fulfils the statutory roles of Money Laundering Reporting Officer and
Senior Information Risk Owner.
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services (as Monitoring Officer) has a duty to
ensure that operations are carried out lawfully. This post also carries out the statutory
Data Protection Officer role.
An annual internal audit plan is developed, in consultation with senior managers,
which outlines the assignments to be carried out and estimated resources. The audit
plan is sufficiently flexible to enable the Orbis Partnership Internal Audit team to
respond to changing risks and priorities of the organisation.

12. IMPROVEMENTS DURING THE YEAR
The 2019/20 Annual Governance Statement included an action plan for 2020/21.
Progress against the risks identified is reported in Appendix D. The following
improvements to the Governance Framework were recognised during 2020/21:
•
•

The introduction of annual refresher training for all office-based employees in key
areas such as health and safety, IT security and the General Data Protection
Regulations.
A simplification of the Council’s suite of IT security policies into one clearer policy.

13. MINOR GOVERNANCE ISSUES DURING THE YEAR
The COVID-19 pandemic has generally weakened officer compliance with the Council’s
governance due to remote working, the need to work quickly and officer desire to help
people and businesses in difficulty without fully thinking through the implications of their
actions. Issues included:







Poor initial control over purchases of food for residents using purchase cards during
the first lockdown.
Officers taking and retaining money for Trade Waste services and not forwarding
them through the Council’s service.
Officers giving free parking to a struggling business during lockdown without authority.
Managers agreeing contractual changes without considering wider implications and
additional payments to staff for extra work during lockdown without contract, and
exceeding normal overtime allowances.
Officers giving pre-Christmas offers to customers without Council approval and billing
for the new prices on garden waste before Council approval.

Once found, Management investigated these issues in the normal way and took disciplinary
action where needed. However, many of these issues seemed to arise due to officer
ignorance of the Council’s governance arrangements, and the absence of early intervention
by the Council’s governance officers while officers worked alone for long parts of the year.

Page 56

Recommendations for the improvement in minor breaches are in the action plan for 2021/22
shown at Appendix E.
In addition Internal Audit found a higher than normal number of services failing to comply
with governance processes and awarded more “partial” or “minimal” assurances on their
audits than normal. These audits were:







BACS - partial
Community Lottery – partial
Travel Expenses – minimal
Building Control Cultural compliance – partial
Capitol Cultural Compliance follow up – partial
Purchase cards – partial (tbc)

These audits have been, or will be, reported to the Audit Committee who review the actions
proposed to resolve high and medium priority issues.
The improvements around the sign off of Cabinet and Committee papers were again not
achieved in the year due to the Democratic Services Manager leaving the organisation.
14. SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES
New significant governance issues are reported to the Audit Committee. This year there
were no significant issues that needed immediate reporting.
15. IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON OPERATIONS
How the Council will operate in a world after the final COVID-19 lockdown or as the
country learns to live with COVID-19 are, as yet, unclear. Officers have started work on
revisiting how we manage our employees and how we monitor our services. This work
needs to be completed.
How Councillor mechanisms will work is also unclear because the Government has not
yet decided how it will allow public meetings to be held in the future.
The 2021/22 Action Plan in Appendix E includes actions on these pieces of work.
Certification
It is our opinion that Corporate Governance, along with supporting controls and procedures,
remains strong for the Council albeit we note there was more non-compliance with controls and
procedures this year. We have put in place an action plan to increase officer awareness and
reduce the frequency of this type of issue.
Signed

…………………………………….
Leader of the Council

…………………………………….
Chief Executive

Page 57

On behalf of the Members and senior officers of the Council

Page 58

Appendix B - HDC Code of Corporate Governance
HORSHAM DISTRICT COUNCIL LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values, by which local government bodies are directed and controlled and through
which they account to, engage with and where appropriate, lead their communities.
To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and individuals working for public sector entities must try to achieve their entity’s
objectives while acting in the public interest at all times.
The Council’s behaviours and actions that demonstrate good governance are set out in response to the CIPFA core principles.
A: Integrity; Ethical Values: the Rule of Law

Page 59

 Member and Officer Codes of Conduct are included in
the Constitution setting out the values and behaviours
that the Council requires Members and officers to adopt.
 Rules of Procedure govern the expected conduct at
meetings of the Council and its committees.
 The Anti-fraud and Corruption Policy is designed to
encourage and promote the prevention and detection of
fraud.
 Member and Officer Registers of Interests, Gifts and
Hospitality safeguard both Members and officers against
conflicts of interest.
 The Whistleblowing Policy ensures anyone with a
concern can have confidence that it will be dealt with
appropriately.
 All officers have a four to six weekly logged conversation
with their manager at which behaviours and matters of
integrity can be addressed informally.
 The Council’s disciplinary process addresses officer
breaches of good conduct.
 The Standards Committee considers complaints or
allegations made against Councillors, as required by the
Localism Act 2011.
 In accordance with ‘Working Together to Safeguard
Children 2015’ and ‘The Care Act 2014’, we recognise the
need to ensure the welfare of all individuals when they
come into contact with services provided by the Council.

B: Openness; engaging with institutional stakeholders; engaging
with individual citizens and service users.
 The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are
made and the procedures and codes of conduct that are followed.
 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviews the Council’s decision
making processes and monitors the internal and external delivery of
services.
 The Audit Committee is independent of Cabinet and Scrutiny functions. It
receives reports on the work of External and Internal Audit and Risk
Management and reviews serious Governance breaches.
 The Governance Committee reviews and updates the Council’s
Constitution.
 The Council supports local communities that produce their own
Neighbourhood Plans providing a vision for their area.
 The Council engages with the public in a number of public consultations.
These are publicised on the Council’s website and the feedback informs
the Council’s decision making process.
 The majority of the Council’s meetings are open to the public. The
Forward Plan, Agendas, papers and minutes are published on the Council’s
website.
 The Council recognises that supporting and engaging communities is a
shared agenda with many partners including West Sussex County
Council, the Police, the Health Service and the community and voluntary
sector. Working together we are all committed to ensuring Horsham
District remains a great area to live and work.
 Senior management communicates with staff by means of regular cascade
meetings organised by the Senior Leadership Team: Director’s meetings;
Team meetings; Chief Executive Talks; the “Council Matters” publication
and weekly Leadership Team feedback.
 Consultation takes place with Parish Councils and other Voluntary and
Community groups throughout the District to ensure effective provision of
community engagement activities.

C: Defining Outcomes; sustainable, economic,
social and environmental benefits.

Page 60

 The Corporate Plan for the period 2019-23 is published
on the Council’s website identifies key priorities.
 Departmental Service Plans and worklists break down
and monitor the objectives of the Corporate Plan with
quarterly reports to Overview & Scrutiny Committee.
 The Council ensures objectives are deliverable by
producing a Medium Term Financial Strategy and
detailed financial budget plans.
 Progress against the Council’s aims and objectives is
monitored through its performance management
framework and reported to management and Overview
& Scrutiny Committee.
 The Council Identifies and manages any corporate and
departmental risks to achieving its objectives through
its risk management process and issues regular reports
to senior management and Audit Committee.
 Value for money is driven through the Council’s
Corporate Procurement Code.
 Information relating to Council plans and initiatives is
published via its website, email updates, social media
and the Horsham District news magazine.

D: Determining and planning interventions; optimising
achievement of intended outcomes.
 The Medium Term Financial Strategy is updated at least twice
a year and takes into account changes in the financial
outlook. It is used as a basis for the annual budget setting
process in which all Heads of Service reconsider their
departmental budgets. The Annual Budget and Council Tax
rate are approved by full Council before the start of each
financial year.
 Progress against the budget and key performance indicators
are reviewed on a monthly basis and reported quarterly to
Overview & Scrutiny.
 The Council continually investigates alternative models of
service delivery to improve efficiency whilst meeting the
needs of customers.
 The Council is working with Community and Voluntary sector
partners to develop projects and deliver efficient and
effective services.
 The Council’s Technology Strategy was updated during
2019/20 and the Digital Strategy introduced ensure service
delivery is supported efficiently and flexibly.
 Benchmarking against others provides information that
assists the Council to design services that are fit for purpose
by looking at options to improve delivery.

E: Developing the capacity of the entity through its leadership and other individuals.
 The Constitution sets out how the Council operates; how decisions are made and which Codes of Conduct are followed. The roles
of Members are clearly set out and a Member/Officer protocol is included.
 A Scheme of Delegation in the Constitution determines the levels at which decisions are taken.
 Detailed regulations in the Constitution (for example Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders) require officer
compliance.
 Managers monitor officer performance and development through regular recorded conversations that support workforce
planning. The process also identifies an individual’s training needs. The Disciplinary and Capability Policies outline the formal
processes for managing officer non-compliance.
 The Standards Committee deals with issues relating to Member performance.
 Partnership agreements are in place for each of the Council’s strategic partnerships and managers hold meet regular meetings to
monitor the agreements.
 A health and wellbeing programme is available to all employees.
 An induction training programme is in place for both Members and employees.
 Regular Senior Managers’ Forums and all Managers’ Conferences enable managers to meet to consider current issues affecting the
Council and to work together to identify solutions.

F: Managing risks; managing performance; robust internal control; managing
data; strong public financial management.
 Decision making protocols are set out in the Council’s Constitution.
 Agendas and minutes of Council/Committee meetings are published on the Council’s
website and include details of decisions taken.
 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviews the Council’s decision making processes
and monitors the internal and external delivery of services.
 Budget monitoring processes are in place and a summary of the Council’s financial
position is reported to senior management monthly and to Members quarterly.
 The Council has an established Risk Management Strategy and embedded Risk
Management processes. Corporate and Departmental risks are formally reviewed
quarterly.
 The Horsham Chief Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee. Audit work is
planned to ensure there are robust systems of internal control in place to mitigate risks
and provide assurance to senior management and Members.
 The Audit Committee meets four times a year to review the effectiveness of the control
environment and risk management framework.
 An officer Corporate Governance Group oversees the Council’s Governance
arrangements.
 A complaints procedure is published on the Council’s website. Quarterly monitoring
reports are submitted to senior management and Members.
 The Council has a suite of policies covering information and data security and guidance is
available for all staff on the Council’s Intranet.

G: Good practice in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective
accountability.
 All committee agendas, papers and minutes are available to the public on the Council’s
website.
 The Council publishes its Audited Annual Accounts and Annual Governance Statement
including an action plan for improvement for any areas of concern.
 All external audit reports are published and corrective action is taken to address any
issues highlighted as necessary.
 The Council has an effective Internal Audit service which reports to the Audit Committee.
Progress to implement agreed actions for improvement in control processes is monitored
and reported to Members.
 Delegated partnership arrangements are effectively monitored by senior managers
through monthly meetings and Partnership Boards where the Council is a full partner.

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

GOVERNANCE ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK

Senior Leadership Team

Management
Controls

Page 63

Internal
Control
Measures

Head of Service Assurance Statements

Operational management has
ownership, responsibility &
accountability for directly assessing,
controlling & mitigating risks

3 Line of Defence

2 Line of Defence
nd

rd

 S151 Officer / Finance
 Monitoring Officer
 Corporate Governance Group
 Risk Management Group
 Health & Safety Advisers
 Procurement Team
 Performance Management Team
 Audit Committee
 Standards Committee
 Overview & Scrutiny

Orbis Internal Audit

Activities covered by several components of
internal governance (compliance, risk
management, quality, IT and other control
departments).

An independent internal audit function will,
through a risk-based approach to its work,
provide assurance to the Senior Leadership
Team and Audit Committee.

Assurance Framework Documentation
 Constitution
 Code of Conduct
 Complaints Procedure
 Equalities Scheme
 Head of Service Assurance Statements
 Communications Strategy
 Financial Policies & Procedures
 Risk Management Strategy & Toolkit
 Risk Registers
 Performance Framework

 Employee Policies
 Pay Policy
 Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy
 Whistleblowing Policy
 Annual Internal Audit Report & Opinion
 Statement of Accounts
 Annual Audit Letter from external audit
 Annual Complaints Report
 Report of Local Government Ombudsman
 Results of External Inspections

 Corporate Plan & Service Plans
 MTFS & Budget
 Money Laundering Policy
 Partnership Agreements / SLAs
 Treasury Management & Investment Strategy
 Procurement Code
 Values & Behaviours

External Audit

1 Line of Defence
st

Regulators / Inspectors / Government Ombudsman

Audit Committee

Environmental Health: Food
Standards Agency ~ Random
inspections; Telecare Services
Authority Annual Inspection.
ICT: PSN.
Legal Services: RIPA Inspections.
Legal Services: Data Protection ~
Annual Certification & Certificate
for Members.
HR & OD: Ofsted inspections re
Safeguarding (adhoc).
Building Control: BSI Accreditation.
Leisure & Culture: HSE Inspections.

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX D:
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ~ ACTION PLAN 2020/21
No.

Outcome
Area for Improvement

Actions

Responsible Officer

Page 65

1

Potential overlaps and conflicts
between the Policy Development
Advisory Groups and the Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.

Governance Committee to review the functions
and make recommendations to Council for
changes (if any).

Head of Legal &
Democratic Services

Review reported to
Governance
Committee in
March 2020, no
changes.

2

Mandatory governance training
courses.

Identify the courses needed, annual refresh
and implement a refresh programme,
reminders to be issued 31/03/20.

Head of HR & OD

Training
completed.

3

S151 and Monitoring Officer sign off for
Cabinet decision reports on
Modern.gov.

Roll out of tracking and sign off through
Modern.gov.

Democratic Services
Manager

Not delivered due
to the Democratic
Services Manager
leaving the
organisation in July
2020.

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX E:
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ~ ACTION PLAN 2021/22
No.
Area for Improvement

Actions

Responsible Officer

Target Date

General officer compliance with good
governance

Develop remote learning governance course
for all office-based staff as part of the suite of
annual courses. To include Heads of Service
Assurance Statements.

2

Lack of understanding of good
governance in local government by all
manager and office-based staff in
Parking & Waste, Health and
Wellbeing, the Capitol and Parks &
Countryside

Briefing for Heads of Service

3

Non-compliance with HR process and
procedure by managers

Rewrite of HR processes and procedures as
come out of lockdown and training for all
managers in the new processes

Head of HR and OD

Within 6 months of
the end of
lockdown

4

Some performance indicators and key
performance indicators are out of date
for the current situation

Redraft of our performance indicators and key
performance indicators for 2021/22

Head of Finance &
Performance

31/5/21

5

Not yet clear how Councillor meetings
and Councillor/officer meetings can be
held after 7 May 2021.

New proposal for future of Councillor and
Councillor/Officer meetings once new law
received

Head of Legal &
Democratic Services

31/5/21

Page 67

1

Learning and
Development Officer

31/5/21
30/9/21

Briefing for all managers
Visits to these services to by the Monitoring
Officer and s151 Officer to explain the
Council’s processes and the importance of
complying with them.

30/9/21

Monitoring Officer &
S151 Officer

Within 3 months of
the end of
lockdown

6

S151 and Monitoring Officer sign off for
Cabinet decision reports on
Modern.gov (carried forward from
2020/21)

Roll out of tracking and sign off through
Modern.gov

Head of Legal &
Democratic Services

31/3/22

Page 68

Agenda Item 10
Report to Audit Committee
7 July 2021
By the Directors of the Housing Companies’
Not Exempt

Subsidiary Housing Company Accounts
Executive summary
In March 2019, Cabinet approved the creation of two companies for the purposes of
providing affordable rental housing in the District. Horsham District Homes Ltd (HDH), the
development company, was incorporated in August 2019 and Horsham District Homes
(Holdings) Ltd (HDHH) was incorporated in December 2019.
Company law requires the directors of the companies to prepare financial statements for
each financial period.
The Council is not required to prepare consolidated group accounts for 2020/21 as the value
of the transactions in the companies’ accounts are considered immaterial. However, the
accounts for the companies have been audited by an independent auditor and will be
approved and signed by the boards at the companies’ board meeting in July 2021.
The audited annual report and financial statements for both companies are included within
this report.

Recommendations
That the Committee is recommended to note:
i)

the statement of accounts for the subsidiary companies.

ii)

the update from the subsidiary companies provided within this report.

Reasons for recommendations
i)

Clause 8.1.2 of the shareholders agreement says the Company shall provide to the
Council the annual accounts as soon as practicable.

ii)

In preparation for these accounts being material and potentially being consolidated
with the Councils statement of accounts in 2021/22.

Background papers: None
Wards affected: All
Contact:

Samantha Wilson, Director, 01403 215309

Page 69

Background Information
1

Introduction and background

1.1

The Council incorporated two housing subsidiary companies in 2019. Company law
requires the directors of the companies to prepare financial statements for each
financial period. This report provides background information to the financial
statements.

1.2

The Council is not required to prepare group accounts for 2020/21 as the value of
the transactions within the companies is considered immaterial. The accounts for
the companies have been audited, by an independent auditor, and will be approved
and signed by the companies’ boards of directors at the July board meetings.

2

Relevant Council policy

2.1

For 2021/22, the Council is likely to be required to produce consolidated financial
statements under the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

3

Details

3.1

Horsham District Homes Limited (HDH)
The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021 are included within this report. No
development activity took place during the year. The Company continued
investigating the feasibility of developing affordable homes on Council owned land.
The first development at Roman Way, Billinghurst has been delayed due to Covid19. The company is also in the process of exploring an opportunity in Horsham Town
for it’s next development. General operational running costs were incurred during in
the year, resulting in the reported loss for the year.

3.2

Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Limited (HDHH)
The accounts for the period ending 31 March 2021 are included within this report.
The period reported is from 10 December 2019 to 31 March 2021. The company has
received s106 housing and enabling contributions from the Council to purchase 5
homes in Slinfold, one 2-bedroom house and four 1-bedroom flats. These properties
are all reported as assets under construction for the period. Since 31 March the 2bedroom house has been transferred to HDHH and the first tenant has moved in.
This income will be shown in the 2021/22 accounts, which will reduce the current loss
the company has reported.

3.3

The accounts for both companies have been prepared on a going concern basis
due to anticipated losses in the early years being supported by the Council, which
will continue until the companies return a profit, which is currently forecast towards
the end of the Council’s medium term financial strategy.

4

Next steps

4.1

The committee is asked to note the accounts which be approved and signed by the
boards of Directors at the companies’ board meeting in July 2021.

4.2

The Council will continue to review the materiality of the transactions for the purposes
of group accounts.

Page 70

5

Outcome of consultations
No consultations were required.

6

Other courses of action considered but rejected

6.1

None

7

Resource and legal consequences

7.1

There are no direct Council resource or legal consequences arising from this report.

8

Risk assessment

8.1

There are no risks to the Council for 2020/21 due to the companies’ accounts not
being consolidated to form group accounts with the Council’s Statement of
Accounts.

8.2

There is no risk that the companies will miss the deadline for filing the statements
with Companies House is September 2021 as they will be signed and submitted in
July 2021.

9

Other considerations

9.1

The recommended actions of this report have no impact on Crime & Disorder;
Human Rights or Equality & Diversity and Sustainability.

Page 71

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10
Company Registration No. 12173332 (England and Wales)

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Page 72

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors

S Wilson (previously Wells)
A Chalmers
B Elliott

Company number

12173332

Registered office

Parkside
Chart Way
Horsham
West Sussex
RH12 1RL

Auditor

Richard Place Dobson Services Limited
1-7 Station Road
Crawley
West Sussex
RH10 1HT

Page 73

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
CONTENTS

Page

Directors' report

1

Directors' responsibilities statement

2

Independent auditor's report

3-5

Profit and loss account

6

Balance sheet

7

Notes to the financial statements

8 - 12

Page 74

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.
Principal activities
The principal activity of the company continued to be that of development of affordable housing for resale
Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as follows:
S Wilson (previously Wells)
A Chalmers
B Elliott

Statement of disclosure to auditor
So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the company’s auditor is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken all the necessary steps that they
ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditor is aware of that information.
Small companies exemption
This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies entitled to the small companies
exemption.
On behalf of the board

..............................

Samantha Wilson

Date: .............................................

Page 75
Richard Place Dobson

page 1

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:





select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Page 76
Richard Place Dobson

page 2

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Horsham District Homes Limited (the 'company') for the year ended 31 March 2021
which comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements, including significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of its loss for the year then ended;


have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.
Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
the information given in the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is

consistent with the financial statements; and
the directors' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.


Page 77
Richard Place Dobson

page 3

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in
our opinion:







adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies regime and
take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the directors' report and take advantage of the small
companies exemption from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, to perform audit procedures to help identify
instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements, and to
respond appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations identified during the audit.
In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial
statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatements due
to fraud through designing and implementing appropriate responses and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud
identified during the audit.
However it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that the
entity’s operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for the prevention and detection
of fraud.
In identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud, the audit engagement
team made enquiries of management, and those charged with governance, regarding the procedures relating to identifying,
evaluating and complying with;

1.
2.
3.

laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged
fraud;
the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;

Page 78
Richard Place Dobson

page 4

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
As a result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements are FRS 102, General Data Protection Regulations, Companies Act 2006, NHBC, Employment and Taxes regulations.
We performed audit procedures to detect non-compliance, which may have a material impact on the financial statements. These
included reviewing financial statement disclosures and evaluating advice received from external advisors. There were no
significant laws and regulations we deemed as having an indirect impact on the financial statements.
The audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls as the area where the financial statements were
most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures performed included but were not limited to testing
manual journal entries and other adjustments and evaluating the business rationale in relation to any significant, unusual
transactions and transactions entered into outside of the normal course of business.
As part of our testing of the risks identified the audit team have conducted the following:
- Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and claims.
- Enquiry of entity staff in tax and compliance functions to identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
- Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
- Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.
- Auditing the risk of management override of controls, including through testing journal entries and other adjustments for
appropriateness, and evaluating the business rationale of significant transactions outside the normal course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

For and on behalf of Richard Place Dobson Services Limited Richard Place .........................
Dobson Services Limited
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor

Page 79
Richard Place Dobson

page 5

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
2021
£
(13,883)
(13,883)

Administrative expenses
Loss before taxation
Tax on loss

2020
£
(26,946)
(26,946)

-

Loss for the financial year

-

(13,883)

(26,946)

Page 80
Richard Place Dobson

page 6

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
2021
Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

£

6

£

43,755

4

5

2020
£

£

-

402,893
26,406

500,000
-

429,299

500,000

(13,883)

(26,946)

Net current assets

415,416

473,054

Net assets

459,171

473,054

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Profit and loss reserves

500,000
(40,829)

500,000
(26,946)

Total equity

459,171

473,054

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to the small
companies regime.
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on ......................... and are signed on
its behalf by:

..............................

Samantha Wilson
Director
Company Registration No. 12173332

Page 81
Richard Place Dobson

page 7

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
1

Accounting policies
Company information
Horsham District Homes Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales. The
registered office is Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1RL.

1.1

Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
companies subject to the small companies regime. The disclosure requirements of section 1A of FRS 102 have been applied
other than where additional disclosure is required to show a true and fair view.
The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary amounts in
these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of
freehold properties and to include investment properties and certain financial instruments at fair value. The principal
accounting policies adopted are set out below.

1.2

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of depreciation and
any impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful lives
on the following bases:
Land under development
Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and is credited or charged to profit or loss.

1.3

Impairment of fixed assets
At each reporting period end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Page 82
Richard Place Dobson

page 8

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
1

Accounting policies
Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply. Where
an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

1.4

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shortterm liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities.

1.5

Financial instruments
The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other
Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.
Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
Basic financial assets
Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price
including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts
discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Classification of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all
of its liabilities.
Basic financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and preference shares that
are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction,
where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest.
Financial liabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised.
Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
1.6

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs. Dividends
payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion of the company.

Page 83
Richard Place Dobson

page 9

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
1

Accounting policies

1.7

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are required to
be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.
The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are received.
Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed to terminate
the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

1.8

Foreign exchange
Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses arising on translation in the period are
included in profit or loss.

2

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future periods.

3

Employees
The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year was:

Total

2021
Number

2020
Number

-

-

Page 84
Richard Place Dobson

page 10

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
4

Tangible fixed assets
Land and
buildings
£
Cost
At 1 April 2020
Additions

43,755

At 31 March 2021

43,755

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021

5

-

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2021

43,755

At 31 March 2020

-

Debtors
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors

6

2021
£

2020
£

23,304
379,589

500,000

402,893

500,000

2021
£

2020
£

13,883

26,946

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Other creditors

Page 85
Richard Place Dobson

page 11

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
7

Related party transactions
Parent Undertaking
The parent undertaking and person with significant control of Horsham District Homes Ltd is Horsham District Council,
a local authority in England and Wales. The address of the Council’s principal place of business is Parkside, Chart Way,
Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1RL.
Related Party Transactions
A summary of the Company’s transactions with Horsham District Council is outlined below:




Under a services agreement, Horsham District Council provides support services to Horsham District Homes Ltd,
these are included in administration costs. Amounts owed to Horsham District Council in respect of these services
are included in trade creditors (note 3)
Horsham District Homes Ltd is 100% owned by Horsham District Council. During the year to 31 March 2021
Horsham District Council paid up 125,000 shares at £1 each, at the balance sheet date the 325,000 shares remain
unpaid.

Horsham District Homes Ltd wholly owns Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Ltd. During the year Horsham District
Homes Ltd provided Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Ltd with a loan to settle their support services costs with the

parent company, Horsham District Council.
8

Going Concern
The Directors believe that preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis is appropriate due to the continued
financial support of Company’s parent undertaking.

9

Covid-19
At the reporting date Covid-19 caused widespread lockdown measures to be imposed in the UK and worldwide. This has
resulted in a reduction in both supply and demand in the economy. It is not currently possible to estimate the impact this
will have on the future financial results of the company but management consider it to be a significant uncertainty.
Management have assessed the impact of Covid-19 on the results reported for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and
consider that all COVID 19 related costs and effects have been reflected in the accounts.

Page 86
Richard Place Dobson

page 12

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10
Company Registration No. 12356952 (England and Wales)

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Page 87

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
COMPANY INFORMATION

(Appointed 19 December 2019)
(Appointed 10 December 2019)
(Appointed 19 December 2019)
(Appointed 19 December 2019)

Directors

S Wilson
A Chalmers
B Elliott
R Jarvis

Company number

12356952

Registered office

Parkside
Chart Way
Horsham
West Sussex
RH12 1RL

Auditor

Richard Place Dobson Services Limited

1-7 Station Road
Crawley
West Sussex
RH10 1HT

Page 88

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
CONTENTS

Page

Directors' report

1

Directors' responsibilities statement

2

Independent auditor's report

3-5

Profit and loss account

6

Balance sheet

7

Notes to the financial statements

8 - 12

Page 89

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2021.
Principal activities
The principal activity of the company is the purchase of affordable housing to be rented to residents on Horsham District
Council waiting list

Directors
The directors who held office during the period and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as follows:
S Wilson
A Chalmers
B Elliott

R Jarvis
Auditor

Statement of disclosure to auditor
So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the company’s auditor is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken all the necessary steps that they
ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditor is aware of that information.
Small companies exemption
This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies entitled to the small companies
exemption.
On behalf of the board

..............................

Samantha Wilson

Date: .............................................

Page 90
Richard Place Dobson

page 1

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:





select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Page 91
Richard Place Dobson

page 2

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Limited (the 'company') for the period ended
31 March 2021 which comprise the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements, including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of its loss for the period then

ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.
Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
the information given in the directors' report for the financial period for which the financial statements are prepared is

consistent with the financial statements; and
the directors' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.


Page 92
Richard Place Dobson

page 3

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in
our opinion:







adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies regime and
take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the directors' report and take advantage of the small
companies exemption from the requirement to prepare a strategic report.

Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, to perform audit procedures to help identify
instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements, and to
respond appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations identified during the audit.
In relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial
statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatements due
to fraud through designing and implementing appropriate responses and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud
identified during the audit.
However it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that the
entity’s operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for the prevention and detection
of fraud.
In identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud, the audit engagement
team made enquiries of management, and those charged with governance, regarding the procedures relating to identifying,
evaluating and complying with;

1.
2.
3.

laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged
fraud;
the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;

Page 93
Richard Place Dobson

page 4

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
As a result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements are FRS 102, General Data Protection Regulations, Companies Act 2006, Employment and Taxes regulations. We
performed audit procedures to detect non-compliance, which may have a material impact on the financial statements. These
included reviewing financial statement disclosures and evaluating advice received from external advisors. There were no
significant laws and regulations we deemed as having an indirect impact on the financial statements.
The audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls as the area where the financial statements were
most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures performed included but were not limited to testing
manual journal entries and other adjustments and evaluating the business rationale in relation to any significant, unusual
transactions and transactions entered into outside of the normal course of business.
As part of our testing of the risks identified the audit team have conducted the following:
- Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and claims.
- Enquiry of entity staff in tax and compliance functions to identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
- Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
- Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.
- Auditing the risk of management override of controls, including through testing journal entries and other adjustments for
appropriateness, and evaluating the business rationale of significant transactions outside the normal course of business.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

For and on behalf of Richard Place Dobson Services Limited Richard Place .........................
Dobson Services Limited
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor

Page 94
Richard Place Dobson

page 5

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Administrative expenses
Loss before taxation
Tax on loss

2021
£
(42,956)
(42,956)
-

Loss for the financial period

(42,956)

Page 95
Richard Place Dobson

page 6

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
2021
Notes

£

Fixed assets
Assets under construction

4

308,490

Current assets
Debtors

5

1

£

308,491
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

(19,652)

6

Long Term Creditors

(331,794)

7
Net current assets
Net assets

(42,955)

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Profit and loss reserves

1
(42,956)

Total equity

(42.955)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to the small
companies regime.
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on ......................... and are signed on
its behalf by:

..............................

Samantha Wilson
Director
Company Registration No. 12356952

Page 96
Richard Place Dobson

page 7

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
1

Accounting policies
Company information
Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales.
The registered office is Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1RL.

1.1

Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
companies subject to the small companies regime. The disclosure requirements of section 1A of FRS 102 have been applied
other than where additional disclosure is required to show a true and fair view.
The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary amounts in
these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the revaluation of
freehold properties and to include investment properties and certain financial instruments at fair value. The principal
accounting policies adopted are set out below.

1.2

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of depreciation and
any impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful lives
on the following bases:
Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset, and is credited or charged to profit or loss.

1.3

Impairment of fixed assets
At each reporting period end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Page 97
Richard Place Dobson

page 8

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
1

Accounting policies
Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply. Where
an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

1.4

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other shortterm liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities.

1.5

Financial instruments
The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other
Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.
Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
Basic financial assets
Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at transaction price
including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts
discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Classification of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all
of its liabilities.
Basic financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and preference shares that
are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction,
where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest.
Financial liabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised.
Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
1.6

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs. Dividends
payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion of the company.

Page 98
Richard Place Dobson

page 9

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
1

Accounting policies

1.7

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are required to
be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.
The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are received.
Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed to terminate
the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

1.8

Foreign exchange
Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses arising on translation in the period are
included in profit or loss.

2

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future periods.

3

Employees
The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the period was:
2021
Number
Total

-

Page 99
Richard Place Dobson

page 10

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
4

Tangible fixed assets
Assets under
Construction
£
Cost
Additions

308,490

At 31 March 2021

308,490

Depreciation and impairment
At 31 March 2021

-

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2021

5

308,490

Debtors
2021
£

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by group undertakings

1

1

6

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2021

£
Other Creditors

7

19,652

Long Term Creditors

2021
£

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Government Grants received

23,304
308,490

331,794

Page 100
Richard Place Dobson

page 11

Draft Financial Statements at 24 May 2021 at 17:15:10

HORSHAM DISTRICT HOMES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
8

Related party transactions
Parent Undertaking
The parent undertaking and person with significant control of Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Ltd is Horsham District
Homes Ltd. The ultimate parent undertaking is Horsham District Council, a local authority in England and Wales. The
address of the Council’s principal place of business is Parkside, Chart Way, Horsham, West Sussex, RH12 1RL.
Related Party Transactions
A summary of the Company’s transactions with Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Ltd is outlined below:






9

Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Ltd borrowed £23,304 from Horsham District Homes Ltd to pay for the
support services during the period. This amount is shown in long term creditors.
Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Ltd is 100% owned by Horsham District Homes Ltd. During the period to 31
March 2021 Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Ltd issued 1 share at £1 each, at the balance sheet date these
shares remain unpaid.
Horsham District Homes (Holdings) Ltd received grant income from Horsham District Council. The grants are
shown in in long term creditors and will be classed as income once the grant conditions have been met.
Under a services agreement, Horsham District Council provides support services to Horsham District Homes
(Holdings) Ltd, these are included in administration costs. Amounts owed to Horsham District Council in respect
of these services are included in trade creditors (note 6)

Going Concern
The Directors believe that preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis is appropriate due to the continued
financial support of Company’s parent undertaking.

10

Covid-19
At the reporting date Covid-19 caused widespread lockdown measures to be imposed in the UK and worldwide. This has
resulted in a reduction in both supply and demand in the economy. It is not currently possible to estimate the impact this
will have on the future financial results of the company but management consider it to be a significant uncertainty.
Management have assessed the impact of Covid-19 on the results reported for the financial period ended 31 March 2021
and consider that all COVID 19 related costs and effects have been reflected in the accounts.

Page 101
Richard Place Dobson

page 12

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 103

This page is intentionally left blank

